MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

PRESENT: Administrator – Richard Colley

General Manager – Matthew Stewart Director Planning – Scott Pedder Director Corporate – Ken Manoski Director Operations – Anthony Vangi

Director Community Services - Graeme Beattie

Director City Future – James Carey Executive Director – Simon Manoski

Director People & Performance – Simone Cook Manager Governance – Brad McPherson

APOLOGIES Nil

THE ADMINISTRATOR DECLARED THE MEETING OPEN AT 6.00 PM.

REF: CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

(194) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That the minutes of the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 27 September 2016 be

adopted.

SECTION 2: LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Nil

SECTION 3: DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY INTEREST OR NON-PECUNIARY CONFLICT OF

INTEREST

Nil

SECTION 4: ADMINISTRATOR MINUTES

ITEM 4.1 BREAST CANCER AWARENESS MONTH

(195) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That Council support Breast Cancer Awareness Month and donate \$5,000 towards this cause and these funds be made available from Council's Section 356 Financial

Assistance Fund.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

SECTION 5: PLANNING MATTERS

SUSPENSION OF STANDING ORDERS

(196) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That -

- i) Permission be granted to those people who have made the necessary application to address Council for five minutes.
- ii) Standing Orders be suspended and Item 5.4 be dealt with now.
- iii) Standing Orders then be resumed.

ITEM 5.4 96-98 COLUMBINE AVENUE, PUNCHBOWL

DEMOLITION OF EXISTING STRUCTURES AND CONSOLIDATION OF EXISTING LOTS TO CREATE ONE NEW ALLOTMENT. CONSTRUCTION OF A MIXED COMMERCIAL/RESIDENTIAL FLAT BUILDING COMPRISING OF TWO RETAIL SHOPS, NINE (9) RESIDENTIAL UNITS AND BASEMENT CARPARKING

MR PETER CARD (HEAD PETITIONER) ADDRESSED COUNCIL.

(197) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That Mr Card be given an extension of one minute to address Council.

(198) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That the application be approved subject to the following conditions.

CONDITIONS OF CONSENT

- The proposal shall comply with the conditions of Development Consent. A
 Construction Certificate shall not be issued until the plans and specifications
 meet the required technical standards and the conditions of this
 Development Consent are satisfied.
- 2) Development shall take place in accordance with Development Application No. DA-799/2015 submitted by Mr Antonios Hanna, accompanied by Drawing No. 12.24/DA01, 12.24/DA02, 12.24/DA03, 12.24/DA04 and the Schedule of External Finishes, prepared by DC Development Consultants and affixed with

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

Council's approval stamp, except where otherwise altered by the specific amendments listed hereunder and/or except where amended by the conditions contained in this approval.

The development plans shall be amended as follows:

- a) The width of the residential entry shall be increased to 1.8m throughout. 'Unit 1' and 'Retail 2' shall be adjusted accordingly, and the western façade shall be amended to provide a residential entry treatment that is well-defined and distinct from the adjoining commercial shopfronts.
- b) Visitor space 'V1' shall be replaced with secure bicycle parking facilities.
- c) Fixed privacy screens shall be provided to the northern edge of the walkway on Levels 1 and 2. The screens are to achieve a minimum height of 1.8m above the finished walkway level and shall comprise the same material and finish as the screens provided to the Columbine Avenue balconies.
- d) Convex safety mirrors are to be provided at the entry to the basement carpark. The mirrors and their installation shall comply with the relevant Australian Standards and must allow residents exiting the carpark a clear line of sight to any traffic or pedestrians in Pratten Lane.
- 3) If unexpected contaminants or materials are unearthed during demolition or construction, works are to cease until the situation is evaluated and an appropriate response determined by the applicant which is agreed to by Council. Council may also request that a NSW EPA accredited site auditor or occupational hygienist is involved to assist with the assessment of any contamination information.
- 4) Any activity carried out in accordance with this approval shall not give rise to offensive odour, offensive noise, or pollution of air, land or water as defined in the Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997.
- 5) A separate application shall be submitted to Council prior to the erection of any signage unless the proposed signage qualifies as 'exempt development'.
- 6) No approval is granted or implied for the use of the commercial floor area. Separate development consent for the use of the commercial floor area is required prior to occupation.

CONDITIONS TO BE SATISFIED PRIOR TO THE ISSUE OF A CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

Prior to the release of a Construction Certificate the following conditions MUST be satisfied and nominated fees/contributions/bonds paid:

- 7) The Certifying Authority must ensure that any certified plans forming part of the Construction Certificate are not inconsistent with this Development Consent and accompanying plans.
- 8) The existing common walls along the side boundaries must be retained and made weatherproof in accordance with the requirements of the Building Code of Australia. Structural details must be provided to the certifying authority for approval prior to the issue of a construction certificate.
- 9) A detailed landscape plan prepared by a qualified landscape architect or designer is to be approved prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate. The landscape plan is to be prepared in accordance with the relevant DCP, and shall consider any stormwater, hydraulic or overland flow design issues where relevant.
- 10) A Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plan shall be prepared in accordance with Council's relevant DCP. The plan shall be prepared by a suitably qualified professional and approved by the Principal Certifying Authority, prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate.
- 11) The approved plans must be submitted to a Sydney Water Quick Check agent or Customer Centre to determine whether the development will affect any Sydney Water asset's sewer and water mains, stormwater drains and/or easement, and if further requirements need to be met. Plans will be appropriately stamped.

Please telephone 13 20 92 or refer to www.sydneywater.com.au for:

- Quick Check agents details see Building Developing and Plumbing then Quick Check; and
- Guidelines for Building Over/Adjacent to Sydney Water Assets see
 Building Developing and Plumbing then Building and Renovating
- 12) A Construction Certificate shall not be issued until written proof that all bonds, fees and/or contributions as required by this consent have been paid to the applicable authority.
- 13) Prior to issue of a Construction Certificate, a Long Service Levy payment of 0.35% of the value of the work is required to be paid to Council on behalf of the Long Service Corporation prior to issue of the Construction Certificate.
- 14) Pursuant to section 80A(1) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, and the Bankstown City Council Section 94A Development

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

Contributions Plan 2009 (Section 94A Plan) a contribution of \$16,350.00 shall be paid to Council.

The amount to be paid is to be adjusted at the time of actual payment, in accordance with the provisions of the Section 94A plan. The contribution is to be paid before the issue of the construction certificate.

Note: The Section 94A Contributions Plans may be inspected at Council's Customer Service Centre, located at Upper Ground Floor, Civic Tower, 66-72 Rickard Road, Bankstown, between the hours of 8.30am-5.00pm Monday to Friday.

- 15) Finished surface levels of all internal works and at the street boundary, including driveways, landscaping and drainage structures, must be as shown on the approved plans. The levels at the street boundary must be consistent with the Street Boundary Alignment Levels issued by Council.
- 16) A Work Permit shall be applied for and obtained from Council for the following engineering works in front of the site, at the applicant's expense:
 - a) A medium duty VFC at the property boundary.
 - b) Drainage connection to Council's system.
 - Removal of all driveway surfaces, reinstatement of laybacks to kerb and gutter and reshaping of the footway, all associated with redundant VFCs.
 - d) Repair of any damage to the public road including the footway occurring during development works.
 - e) Reinstatement of the footway reserve and adjustment or relocation of existing public utility services to match the footway design levels as proposed on the approved Work Permit. Adjustment or relocation to any public utility services shall be carried out to the requirements of the public utility authority.

Note: As a site survey and design is required to be prepared by Council in order to determine the necessary information, payment for the Work Permit should be made at least twenty one (21) days prior to the information being required and must be approved prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate.

17) Stormwater drainage from the development shall be designed so as to comply with Council's Development Engineering Standards and the requirements of the BASIX Certificate. A final detailed stormwater drainage design shall be prepared by a qualified Professional Civil Engineer in accordance with the above requirements and shall generally be in accordance with the concept stormwater plan job No. J551013, rev A dated 28/04/2016 prepared by JAS ENGINEERS. The final plan shall be certified by the design

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

engineer that it complies with Council's Development Engineering Standards, the BASIX Certificate and the relevant Australian Standards.

18) Where Council approved cut or fill exceeds 200mm and stable batter of 1 vertical to 3 horizontal maximum grade cannot be achieved, then a masonry or other proprietary material retaining wall, intended and suitable for that purpose, shall be constructed within the development site. Note, filling of the site needs specific approval from Council.

The retaining wall shall be located so that it will not impede or obstruct the natural flow of stormwater. Retaining walls exceeding 600mm in height shall be designed by a qualified professional Civil/Structural Engineer. Plans and details prepared and signed by the Engineer are to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate.

All works associated with the construction of the wall, including backfilling and drainage, is to be located wholly within the allotment boundaries.

- 19) An all weather pavement shall be designed to withstand the anticipated wheel loads for all areas subjected to vehicular movements. Internal pavements specification prepared and certified by all qualified professional Civil Engineer to comply with the relevant Australian Standards, shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) for approval prior to the issue of a construction certificate.
- 20) Prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate for this development, the applicant must obtain approval from Council for a Site, Pedestrian and Traffic Management Plan. This Plan must address the measures that will be implemented for the protection of adjoining properties, pedestrian safety and traffic management and other requirements as specified below.

A PRIVATE CERTIFIER CANNOT APPROVE YOUR SITE, PEDESTRIAN & TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PLAN

This plan shall include details of the following:

- a) Proposed ingress and egress points for vehicles to and from the construction site;
- b) Proposed protection of pedestrians, adjacent to the constructions site;
- c) Proposed hoardings, scaffolding and/or fencing to secure the construction site;
- d) Proposed pedestrian management whilst vehicles are entering/exiting the construction site;
- e) Proposed measures to be implemented for the protection of all public roads and footway areas surrounding the construction site from building

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- activities, crossings by heavy equipment, plant and materials delivery and static load from cranes, concrete pumps and the like;
- Proposed method of loading and unloading excavation machines, building material, construction materials and waste containers during the construction period;
- g) Proposed traffic control measures such as advanced warning signs, barricades, warning lights, after hours contact numbers etc are required to be displayed and shall be in accordance with Council's and the NSW Roads and Maritime Services requirements and AS1742.3.
- h) Proposed method of support of any excavation, adjacent to adjoining buildings or the public road. The proposed method of support is to be certified by a Civil Engineer with National Professional Engineering Registration (NPER) in the construction of civil works.
- Proposed measures to be implemented in order to ensure that no soil/excavated material is transported on wheels or tracks of vehicles or plant and deposited on the public road.
- j) Proposed measures for protection of the environment including procedures to control environmental impacts of work e.g. sediment control, proper removal, disposal or recycling of waste materials, protection of vegetation and control/prevention of pollution i.e. water, air noise, land pollution.
- k) Proposed construction vehicle routes, number of trucks, hours of operation, access arrangements and traffic control.

The approved Site, Pedestrian and Traffic Management Plan is to be implemented prior to the commencement of any works on the construction site. The applicant will be required to pay for inspections by Council Officers in accordance with Council's adopted fees and charges.

In addition a RMS Approval / Road Occupancy Licence will be required for works on Regional or State Roads or within 100m of a traffic facility including roundabouts and traffic signals. Refer to Council's Development Engineering Standards for a list of Regional and State Roads.

- 21) The Site, Pedestrian and Traffic Management Plan required at Condition 20 above shall include provisions to minimise the use of Pratten Lane for construction activities, including the loading and unloading of construction materials and machinery.
- As any works within, or use of, the footway or public road for construction purposes requires separate Council approval under Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993 and/or Section 68 of the Local Government Act 1993, Council requires that prior to any Construction Certificate for this development being issued, a Works Permit and or a Roadway/Footpath Building Occupation Permit shall be obtained where one or more of the following will occur, within, on or over the public footway or public road:

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

A PRIVATE CERTIFIER CANNOT ISSUE THESE PERMITS

WORKS REQUIRING A 'WORKS PERMIT'

- a) Dig up, disturb, or clear the surface of a public footway or public road,
- b) Remove or interfere with a structure or tree (or any other vegetation) on a public footway or public road,
- c) Connect a road (whether public or private) to a classified road,
- d) Undertake footway, paving, vehicular crossing (driveway), landscaping or stormwater drainage works within a public footway or public road,
- e) Install utilities in, under or over a public road,
- f) Pump water into a public footway or public road from any land adjoining the public road,
- g) Erect a structure or carry out a work in, on or over a public road
- h) Require a work zone on the public road for the unloading and or loading of vehicles
- i) Pump concrete from within a public road,
- j) Stand a mobile crane within a public road
- k) Store waste and recycling containers, skips, bins and/or building materials on any part of the public road.
- I) The work is greater than \$50,000.
- m) Demolition is proposed.
- n) Subdivision is proposed.
- o) A Swimming pool is proposed.

Assessment of Works Permits (a to e) includes the preparation of footway design levels, vehicular crossing plans, dilapidation reports and issue of a Road Opening Permit. All proposed works within the public road and footway shall be constructed under the supervision and to the satisfaction of Council. The applicant/developer shall arrange for necessary inspections by Council whilst the work is in progress.

For commercial or multi-unit residential developments within the designated CBD or an urban village area, footway design and construction and street tree supply, installation and tree hole detailing shall be as per the Council master plan for that area. Full width footways are to be supplied and installed at full cost to the developer to specification as supplied by Council. Layout plan of pavement to be submitted to Council for approval prior to the issue of the Works Permit.

All Council fees applicable, minimum restoration charges and inspection fees shall be paid prior to the assessment of the Work Permit in accordance with Council's adopted fees and charges. Note: Additional fees after approval will be charged where the Work Permit requires occupation of the Road or Footpath ie Hoardings, Work Zones etc.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

In determining a Works Permit, Council can impose conditions and require inspections by Council Officers. Forms can be obtained from Councils Customer Service counter located on the ground floor of Council's administration building at 66 - 72 Rickard Road, Bankstown or Council's website www.bankstown.nsw.gov.au

Part of any approval will require the person or company carrying out the work to carry public liability insurance to a minimum value of ten million dollars. Proof of the policy is to be provided to Council prior to commencing any work approved by the Work Permit including the Road Opening Permit and must remain valid for the duration of the works.

The commencement of any works on public land, including the footway or public road, may incur an on the spot fine of not less than \$1100 per day that work continues without a Works Permit and/or a Roadway/Footpath Building Occupation Permit. All conditions attached to the permit shall be strictly complied with prior to occupation of the development. Works nonconforming to Council's specification (includes quality of workmanship to Council's satisfaction) shall be rectified by the Council at the applicant's expense.

- 23) The pump out drainage system for the access ramp and basement car parking area shall be provided in accordance with Council's Development Engineering Standards. Engineering details and specifications shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) for approval prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate.
- 24) Engineering details and manufacturers specifications for the pumps, switching system and sump pit shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) for approval prior to issue of any Construction Certificate.
- 25) The layout of the car parking area associated with the development (including the driveway, turning paths, sight distance requirements, aisle width, aisle length, and parking bay dimensions) shall be in accordance with AS 2890.1 2004, AS 2890.6 2009 and AS 2890.2 2002.
- 26) For internal driveways with a gradient exceeding 10% (1 in 10), longitudinal profiles of all vehicular driveways and ramps shall be submitted for approval by the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate. The maximum grade of the driveway/ramp shall not exceed 25% and shall comply with AS 2890.1. The profile shall be drawn at a reduction ratio of 1 to 25 vertical and horizontal and shall be related to the datum used for the issue of the footway design levels and shall also show the road centre line levels, Council issued footway design levels and gutter levels.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

Council's Car Clearance Profile in Council's Development Engineering Standards, (Plan No. S 006) shall be used to design the profile.

- 27) The development is to be carried out in accordance with the commitments shown on the BASIX Certificate. The BASIX commitments approved with this Development Application are to be reflected in the Construction Certificate plans and specifications. Any proposed changes to the BASIX commitments after the Construction Certificate has been issued will require an updated BASIX Certificate and a new Construction Certificate.
- 28) The route for transportation to and from the development site of bulk and excavation materials shall generally be by the shortest possible route to the nearest "regional road", with every effort to avoid school zones on public roads. The applicant shall nominate the route for approval by Council prior to commencement of any work on the site. An Agreement to Council's satisfaction, signed by the applicant/owner specifying the approved route and acknowledging responsibility to pay Council for damages to public property adjacent to the site shall be lodged with Council prior to release of any Construction Certificate. All damage must be rectified upon completion of work.

CONDITIONS TO BE SATISFIED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION

- 29) The building works in accordance with the development consent must not be commenced until:
 - a) a construction certificate for the building work has been issued by the council or an accredited certifier, and
 - b) the person having benefit of the development consent has:
 - appointed a principal certifying authority for the building work, and
 - ii. notified the principal certifying authority that the person will carry out the building work as an owner-builder, if that is the case, and
 - c) the person having the benefit of the development consent, if not carrying out the work as an owner-builder, has:
 - iii. appointed a principal contractor for the building work who must be the holder of a contractor licence if any residential building work is involved, and
 - iv. notified the principal certifying authority of any such appointment, and
 - v. unless the person is the principal contractor, notified the principal contractor of any critical stage inspections and other inspections that are to be carried out in respect of the building work, and
 - d) the person having the benefit of the development consent has given at least 2 days' notice to the council of the person's intention to commence the erection of the building.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- 30) Prior to the commencement of works, a dilapidation report shall be prepared by the developer and a copy provided to the owners of properties directly adjoining the subject site. The report must clearly identify the condition of existing structures on these adjoining properties prior to the commencement of works. All care shall be taken during the construction process to ensure adjoining structures are protected, and should any change in condition occur from that recorded in the dilapidation report, the rectification of such shall be at full cost to the developer.
- 31) Suitable erosion and sediment control measures shall be erected in accordance with the plans accompanying the Construction Certificate prior to the commencement of construction works and shall be maintained at all times.
- 32) Existing trees within the vicinity of the construction works or paths of travel for construction vehicles accessing the development that are to be retained shall be protected with temporary fencing of a style non injurious to tree roots, placed 2m from the trunk base of the existing tree to prevent damage during construction, and retained in accordance with Council's Tree Preservation Order. There is to be no stockpiling of materials within the 2m fenced zone.
- 33) Council warning sign for Soil and Water Management must be displayed on the most prominent point of the site, visible to both the street and site works. The sign must be displayed throughout the construction period.
- 34) A section 73 compliance certificate under the Sydney Water Act 1994 must be obtained from Sydney Water Corporation. Make early application for the certificate, as there may be water and sewer pipes to be built and this can take some time. This can also impact on other services and building, driveway or landscape design.
 - Application must be made through an authorised Water Servicing Coordinator. For help either visit www.sydneywater.com.au > Building and Developing > Developing your Land > Water Servicing Coordinator or telephone 13 20 92.
- 35) Prior to commencement, the applicant must provide a temporary on-site toilet if access to existing toilets on site is not adequate.
- 36) In the case of residential building work for which the Home Building Act 1989 requires there to be a contract of insurance in force in accordance with Part 6 of the Act, that such a contract of insurance is in force before any building work authorised to be carried out by the consent commences.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- 37) Residential building work within the meaning of the Home Building Act 1989 must not be carried out unless the principal certifying authority for the development to which the work relates (not being the council) has given the council written notice of the following information:
 - a. in the case of work for which a principal certifying is required to be appointed:
 - i. the name and licence number of the principal contractor, and
 - ii. the name of the insurer by which the work is insured under Part 6 of the Act,
 - b. in the case of work to be done by an owner-builder:
 - i. the name of the owner-builder, and
 - ii. If the owner-builder is required to hold an owner-builder permit under that Act, the number of the owner-builder permit.

If arrangements for doing the residential building work are changed while the work is in progress so that the information notified becomes out of date, further work must not be carried out unless the principal certifying authority for the development to which the work relates (not being the council) has given the council written notice of the updated information.

38) Prior to the commencement of any building work a fence shall be erected along the property boundaries of the development site, except where an existing 1.8m high boundary fence is in good condition and is capable of securing the site. Any new fencing shall be temporary (such as cyclone wire) and at least 1.8m high.

All fencing is to be maintained for the duration of the construction to ensure that the site is secured and privacy of the adjoining properties is not compromised.

Where the development site is located within 3.6m of a public place then a Class A or Class B hoarding shall be constructed appropriate to the works proposed. A Works Permit for such hoardings shall be submitted to Council for approval prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate.

39) A sign shall be displayed on the site indicating the name of the person responsible for the site and a telephone number of which that person can be contacted during and outside normal working hours or when the site is unattended.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- 40) For development that involves any building work, subdivision work or demolition work, a sign must be erected in a prominent position on any site on which building work, subdivision work or demolition is being carried out:
 - showing the name, address and telephone number of the Principal Certifying Authority for the work, and
 - showing the name of the principal contractor (if any) for any building work and a telephone number on which that person may be contacted during and outside working hours, and
 - c) stating that unauthorised entry to the work site is prohibited.

Any such sign is to be maintained while the building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out, but must be removed when the work has been completed.

Note: This clause does not apply in relation to building work, subdivision work or demolition work that is carried out inside an existing building that does not affect the external walls of the building, or in relation to Crown building work that is certified, in accordance with Section 116G of the Act, to comply with the technical provisions of the State's building laws.

- 41) Permission is granted for the demolition of existing structures on the property, subject to strict compliance with the following:
 - a) The developer is to notify adjoining residents seven (7) working days prior to demolition. Such notification is to be clearly written on A4 size paper giving the date demolition will commence and be placed in the letterbox of every premises (including every residential flat or unit, if any) either side, immediately at the rear of, and directly opposite the demolition site.
 - b) Written notice is to be given to Bankstown City Council for inspection prior to demolition. Such written notice is to include the date when demolition will commence and details of the name, address, business hours and contact telephone number and licence number of the demolisher. The following building inspections shall be undertaken by Bankstown City Council:
 - (i) A *precommencement* inspection shall be carried out by Council when all the site works required as part of this consent are installed on the site and prior to demolition commencing.
 - (ii) A final inspection shall be carried out by Council when the demolition works have been completed to ensure that the site is left in a satisfactory manner, in accordance with the conditions of this consent.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

NOTE: Payment of an inspection fee at Council's current rate will be required prior to each inspection. Council requires 24 hours notice to carry out inspections. Arrangements for inspections can be made by phoning **9707 9410**, **9707 9412** or **9707 9635**.

- c) Prior to demolition, the applicant must erect a sign at the front of the property with the demolisher's name, license number, contact phone number and site address.
- d) Prior to demolition, the applicant must erect a 2.4m high temporary fence or hoarding between the work site and any public place. Access to the site shall be restricted to Authorised Persons Only and the site shall be secured against unauthorised entry when the building work is not in progress or the site is otherwise unoccupied. Where demolition is to occur within 3m of a public place a Work Permit application for the construction of a Class A or Class B hoarding shall be submitted to Council for approval.
- e) The demolition plans must be submitted to the appropriate Sydney Water Office to determine whether the development will affect Sydney Water's sewer and water mains, stormwater drains and/or easements. If the development complies with Sydney Water's requirements, the demolition plans will be stamped indicating that no further requirements are necessary.
- f) Demolition is to be carried out in accordance with the appropriate provisions of Australian Standard AS2601-2001.
- g) The hours of demolition work shall be limited to between 7.00am and 6.00pm on weekdays, 7.00am and 1.00pm on Saturdays and no work shall be carried out on Sundays and public holidays, and weekends (Saturdays and Sundays) adjacent to public holidays.
- h) Where materials containing asbestos cement are to be removed, demolition is to be carried out by licensed contractors who have current Workcover Accreditation in asbestos removal.
- i) Hazardous or intractable wastes arising from the demolition process shall be removed and disposed of in accordance with the requirements of WorkCover NSW and the NSW EPA 'Environmental Guidelines: Assessment, Classification and Management of Liquid and Non-Liquid Wastes 2004'.
- j) During demolition, the public footway and public road shall be clear at all times and shall not be obstructed by any demolished material or vehicles. The public road and footway shall be swept (NOT hosed) clean

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

of any material, including clay, soil and sand. (NOTE: If required, Council will clean the public road/footway at the applicant's expense). On the spot fines may be levied by Council against the demolisher and or owner for failure to comply with this condition.

- k) Demolition procedures shall maximise the reuse and recycling of demolished materials in order to reduce the environmental impacts of waste disposal.
- All vehicles leaving the site with demolition materials shall have their loads covered and vehicles shall not track soil and other material onto the public roads and footways and the footway shall be suitably protected against damage when plant and vehicles access the site. All loading of vehicles with demolished materials shall occur on site.
- m) The burning of any demolished material on site is not permitted and offenders will be prosecuted.
- n) Care shall be taken during demolition to ensure that existing services on the site (ie. sewer, electricity, gas, phone) are not damaged. Any damage caused to existing services shall be repaired by the relevant authority at the applicant's expense.
- Suitable erosion and sediment control measures shall be erected prior to the commencement of demolition works and shall be maintained at all times.
- p) Prior to the demolition of any building constructed before 1970, a Work Plan shall be prepared and submitted to Council in accordance with Australian Standard AS2601-2001 by a person with suitable expertise and experience. The Work Plan shall outline the identification of any hazardous materials, including surfaces coated with lead paint, method of demolition, the precautions to be employed to minimise any dust nuisance and the disposal methods for hazardous materials.

CONDITIONS TO BE SATISFIED DURING CONSTRUCTION

- 42) The hours of site works shall be limited to between 7.00am and 6.00pm on weekdays and 7.00am and 1.00pm on Saturdays. No work shall be carried out on Sundays and public holidays, and weekends (Saturdays and Sundays) adjacent to public holidays.
- 43) The building work must be carried out in accordance with the requirements of the Building Code of Australia, the provisions of the relevant Australian Standards and the approved plans.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- 44) Prior to each floor slab being poured, an identification report prepared by a registered surveyor shall be submitted verifying that the proposed slab's finished floor level and siting to the property boundary conforms with the approved plans.
- 45) All Civil and Hydraulic engineering works on site must be carried out in accordance with Council's Development Engineering Standards. All Civil and Hydraulic engineering works associated with Council's assets and infrastructure must be carried out in accordance with Council's Work Permit requirements and to Council's satisfaction.
- 46) All excavations and backfilling must be executed safely and in accordance with the relevant Australian Standards.
- 47) If the soil conditions require it, retaining walls or other approved methods of preventing movement of the soil must be provided, and adequate provisions must be made for drainage. Separate approval may be required for retaining walls should they be required.
- 48) If an excavation extends below the level of the base of the footings of an adjoining building or a building on an adjoining allotment of land, the person causing the excavation to be made:
 - if necessary, must underpin and support the building in an approved manner, and
 - b) must, at least 7 days before excavating below the level of the base of the footings of a building give notice of intention to do so to the owner of that building and furnish particulars of the excavation to the owner of the building being erected or demolished.
 - c) must take all precautions to protect all of the structures from damage.

The owner of any affected buildings is not liable for any part of the cost of work carried out for the purposes of this clause, whether carried out on the allotment of land being excavated or on an adjoining allotment of land.

- 49) The stormwater drainage system shall be constructed in accordance with Council's Development Engineering Standards and the engineering plans and details approved by the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA).
- 50) A suitably qualified Professional Civil or Structural Engineer shall be engaged by the developer to carry out inspections relating to construction of internal driveways and parking areas. The work shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans and specifications and certification from the Civil or Structural Engineer is to be provided upon completion.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- Prior to the commencement of work, the builder shall prepare a photographic record of the road reserve which clearly shows its condition prior to works occurring on site. For the entirety of demolition, subdivision or construction works, there shall be no stockpiling of building spoil, materials, or storage of equipment on the public road, including the footway and the road reserve shall be maintained in a safe condition at all times. No work shall be carried out on the public road, including the footway, unless a Work Permit authorised by Council has been obtained.
- 52) All soils removed from the property shall be classified in accordance with the NSW EPA Waste Classification Guidelines 2009 and, if necessary, be disposed of to an appropriate EPA licensed waste facility.

CONDITIONS TO BE SATISFIED PRIOR TO OCCUPATION

- 53) The use of a building in accordance with this Development Consent must not be commenced until Council or the PCA has issued an Occupation Certificate for the building and site works.
- 54) A final Occupation Certificate shall not be issued until all conditions relating to demolition, construction and site works of this development consent are satisfied and Council has issued a Work Permit Compliance Certificate.
- Prior to the issue of any Occupation Certificate, design verification from a qualified designer shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority. The design verification is a statement in which the qualified designer verifies that the development as shown in the plans and specifications in respect of which the Construction Certificate was issued, having regard to the design quality principles set out in SEPP No. 65.
- 56) Landscaping is to be installed in accordance with the approved landscape plan. All works and methods nominated and materials and plants specified on the approved landscape plan are to be completed prior to the issue of an occupation certificate. The landscaping shall be maintained for the life of the development.
- 57) A suitably qualified Professional Civil Engineer shall certify that the driveways, parking bays, and service areas have been constructed in accordance with the approved plans and specifications. Such Certification shall be submitted prior to the issue of the Occupation Certificate or occupation of the site.
- 58) Lighting must be provided to the entries of the dwellings, driveways and parking areas to promote a high level of safety and security at night and during periods of low light. Lighting provided should be hooded, shielded or

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

directed away from neighbouring dwellings to minimise glare and associated nuisances to residents.

- 59) Lighting of the premises shall be installed in accordance with Australian Standard AS4282 Control of the Obtrusive Effects of Outdoor Lighting so as to avoid annoyance to the occupants of neighbouring premises or glare to motorists on nearby roads.
- 60) The premises must be readily identified from the street with the allocated house numbers. Numbering of the development without Council's written approval is not permitted. An official "house numbering" letter will be sent to the applicant indicating the proposed house numbers of the new development. Note: The house numbers of the development are subject to change depending of the type on subdivision that may occur at a later stage.
- The Section 73 Certificate must be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority before occupation of the development.
- 62) A registered surveyor shall prepare a Work As Executed Plan, and a suitably qualified Hydraulic Engineer shall provide certification of the constructed onsite stormwater detention system.

The Work As Executed information shall be shown in red on a copy of the approved stormwater plan and shall include all information specified in Council's Development Engineering Standards. The Work As Executed plan shall be submitted to the Hydraulic Engineer prior to certification of the onsite stormwater detention system.

The engineer's certification of the on-site stormwater detention system should be carried out similar to Council's standard form "On-Site Stormwater Detention System - Certificate of Compliance", contained in Council's Development Engineering Standards.

A copy of the Work As Executed Plan and Hydraulic Engineer's Certification shall be submitted to Council for information prior to issue of the final occupation certificate.

63) The developer shall register, on the title of the subject property, a Restriction on the Use of Land and Positive Covenant, in accordance with the standard terms for "Registration of OSD on title", as outlined in Council's Development Engineering Standards and in accordance with the appropriate provisions of the Conveyancing Act.

Note: The location of the "On-Site Stormwater Detention System" shall be shown on the plan of subdivision where subdivision is proposed. Where subdivision is not proposed the location of the "On-Site Stormwater

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

Detention System" shall be included on an A4 size site plan attached to the Section 88E Instrument and registered on the title prior to the issue of the final occupation certificate.

The developer shall submit to Council evidence of the final registration of the Restriction and Positive Covenant on the title of the property.

STANDING ORDERS WERE RESUMED.

ITEM 5.1 3 FETHERSTONE STREET, BANKSTOWN

EXTEND ONE OF THE EXISTING LIFT SHAFTS TO PROVIDE ACCESS TO THE ROOF LEVEL, AUTHORISE THE ADAPTATION OF THE PREVIOUSLY APPROVED ROOF ENCLOSURES INTO SIX (6) RESIDENTIAL STUDIO APARTMENTS AND PROVIDE FOR A COVERED METAL SHEET ROOFING ELEMENT AND A GLAZED PARTITION WALL FROM THE STAIR WELL TO THE STUDIOS

(199) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That the application be approved subject to the following conditions.

CONDITIONS OF CONSENT

- The proposal shall comply with the conditions of Development Consent. A
 Construction Certificate shall not be issued until the plans and specifications
 meet the required technical standards and the conditions of this Development
 Consent are satisfied.
- Development shall take place in accordance with Development Application No.DA-124/2011, submitted by The Owners of Corporation Strata Plan 71808, accompanied by Drawing Nos A1 (01 of 09, 02 of 09, 03 of 09, 04 of 09, 05 of 09, 06 of 09, 07 of 09, 08 of 09 and 09 of 09), all Job No 1101.03A, prepared by Alex Chistiakoff Architect, dated 10 February 2011 and affixed with Council's approval stamp, except where otherwise altered by the specific amendments listed hereunder and/or except where amended by the conditions contained in this approval.

The development plans shall be amended as follows:

- a) The lift overrun is to be at a maximum of 63.725 metres AHD.
- 3) The maximum height of the building must not exceed 63.725 metres AHD, inclusive of all lift over-runs, vents, chimneys, aerials, antennae (of whatever type), lighting rods, any roof top garden plantings, etc.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- 4) The roof should be of a conspicuous colour and should not blend with the surrounding background.
- 5) The building is to be obstacle lit with low intensity steady red obstacle lights at night in accordance with the Manual of Standards for Part 139 of the Civil Aviation Safety Regulations 1998 (part 139 MOS) Chapter 9, Section 9.4. The proponent should refer to subsection 9.4.6 for the lighting characteristics.
- 6) The proponent must notify BAL in writing of the finished building height (in metres AHD), so that BAL can update its records.

CONDITIONS TO BE SATISFIED PRIOR TO THE ISSUE OF A CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE

Prior to the release of a Construction Certificate the following conditions MUST be satisfied and nominated fees/contributions/bonds paid:

- 7) The Certifying Authority must ensure that any certified plans forming part of the Construction Certificate are not inconsistent with this Development Consent and accompanying plans.
- 8) A Construction Certificate shall not be issued until written proof that all bonds, fees and/or contributions as required by this consent have been paid to the applicable authority.
- 9) A long service levy payment which is 0.35% of the total cost of the work is to be paid to the Building and Construction Industry Long Service Payments Corporation.
- 10) The development is to be carried out in accordance with the commitments shown on the BASIX Certificate. The BASIX commitments approved with this Development Application are to be reflected in the Construction Certificate plans and specifications. Any proposed changes to the BASIX commitments after the Construction Certificate has been issued will require an updated BASIX Certificate and a new Construction Certificate.
- 11) Stormwater runoff from all areas proposed for development shall be collected and connected to the existing stormwater system within the site, subject to the existing system being evaluated by a qualified professional Civil Engineer and found to be structurally adequate and to have the required hydraulic capacity, as required in Council's Development Engineering Standards. The existing system shall be upgraded or replaced as necessary to comply with the requirements above.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

The plan for the proposed drainage system together with the hydraulic evaluations shall be submitted to the PCA for approval with the application for the Construction Certificate.

12) The applicant shall comply with the following conditions or otherwise provide a Performance Solution, submitted as a report to the certifying authority, demonstrating compliance with the appropriate Performance Requirements of Volume 1 of the National Construction Code (BCA) prior to the issuing of a construction certificate.

(Note: If as a result of complying with these conditions of consent, that building works are required that have not been endorsed on the endorsed plans and this development consent, the applicant will be required to obtain the necessary development consent prior to the issuing of a construction certificate):

- a. The residential sole occupancy units at the roof terrace level and the proposed building works in relation to the development consent shall comply with the appropriate performance requirements of the BCA.
- b. Structural drawings and certification from a registered structural engineer, certifying that the design is in accordance with the relevant structural provisions of the BCA and Australian Standards and design codes shall be submitted to the certifying authority prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate.
- c. Certification justifying the capacity of the existing structure to carry the proposed new loads and to resist the loads, forces and moments arising from the proposed new use of the building, in accordance with the relevant performance requirements of Sections B and C of the BCA, shall be submitted by an appropriately qualified structural engineer to the certifying authority prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate.
- d. The residential sole occupancy units at the roof terrace level and the proposed building works in relation to the development consent, shall be constructed in Type A Construction in accordance with the appropriate requirements of Section C of the BCA. Attention is drawn but not limited to the following building elements:
 - External loadbearing and non-loadbearing walls.
 - Walls separating the proposed residential sole occupancy units
 - Floors and roof
 - Internal walls, internal beams, and internal columns
 - Window and door lintels.
 - Canopy
 - Structures on roof
- e. The use of lightweight construction within the residential sole occupancy units at the roof terrace level and the proposed building works in relation to the development consent, shall comply with the requirements of C1.8

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

of the BCA.

- f. All proposed materials, linings and surface finishes installed within the residential sole occupancy units at the roof terrace and the proposed building works in relation to the development consent, shall meet the requirements of C1.10 of the BCA.
- g. The proposed new passenger lift shall be an emergency lift, complying with the requirements of C2.10, C2.11 and Part E3 of the BCA.
- h. Doorways that open into the fire isolated stairways shall be protected by self-closing or automatic closing fire doors in accordance with the requirements of C3.8 of the BCA.
- i. Self-closing fire doors shall be provided to all residential sole occupancy units in accordance with the requirements of Section C of the BCA.
- j. That the services passing through a floor or wall that are required to have an fire resistance level (FRL) in accordance with the BCA, shall be protected in accordance with C3.12, C3.13 or C3.15 of the BCA.
- k. Without passing through another sole-occupancy unit, every occupant of a storey or part of a storey of the building must have access to an exit, or at least two exits, in accordance with D1.2 of the BCA.
- I. Unobstructed height and widths for the exits and paths of travels to the exits shall be provided in accordance with D1.6 of the BCA.
- m. The ground floor fire isolated passageway serving the central fire isolated stairways shall be extended to discharge directly to the road, in accordance with D1.7 of the BCA.
- n. The existing stairways and landings shall be made to comply with all of the requirements of D2.13 and D2.14 of the BCA.
- o. The thresholds to exit doorways and to the entry doorways of the residential sole occupancy units at the roof terrace, shall comply with the requirements of D2.15 of the BCA.
- p. Balustrades shall be provided to the roof terrace and to the fire isolated stairways in accordance with D2.16 of the BCA.
- q. Handrails shall be provided to the fire isolated stairways in accordance with D2.17 of the BCA
- r. All doors serving as required exits or forming part of a required exit and any doors installed in a path of travel to a required exit, shall comply with the relevant requirements of D2.19, D2.20 and D2.21 of the BCA.
- s. Warning signs shall be provided in accordance with D2.23 and E3.3 of the BCA.
- t. Protection to the windows of the residential sole occupancy units at the roof terrace levels shall be provided in accordance with D2.24 of the BCA.
- Access for people with disabilities shall be provided to the roof terrace level of the building in accordance with the requirements of Part D3 of the BCA.
- v. The existing fire hydrant system shall be extended to the roof terrace level and be brought to total conformity with Performance Requirement EP1.3 of the BCA.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- w. Hose reels shall be installed in accordance with E1.4 of the BCA.
- x. The existing sprinkler system shall be extended to the roof terrace level and be brought to total conformity with E1.5 and Specification E1.5 of the BCA.
- y. Portable fire extinguishers shall be provided, in accordance with E1.6 of the BCA.
- z. A fire control centre facility shall be provided within the building to meet Performance Requirement EP1.6 of the BCA
- aa. The existing automatic fire detection and alarm system shall be extended to the roof terrace and be brought to total conformity with Performance Requirements EP2.1 and EP2.2 of the BCA.
- bb. The fire isolated exit stairways and the connecting fire isolated passageways shall be provided with an automatic air pressurisation system in accordance with E2.2 of the BCA and Joint Standard AS/NZS 1668.1.
- cc. A system of emergency lighting shall be installed throughout the building in accordance with the requirements of E4.2, E4.3 and E4.4 of the BCA and Australian Standards AS 2293.1.
- dd. Exit and directional signs shall be provided in accordance with the requirements of E4.5, E4.6 and E4.8 of the BCA, and Australian Standards AS 2293.1.
- ee. A sound system and intercom system for emergency purposes in accordance with E4.9 of the BCA shall be installed throughout the entire building

CONDITIONS TO BE SATISFIED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION

- 13) The building work in accordance with the development consent must not be commenced until:
 - a construction certificate for the building work has been issued by the council or an accredited certifier, and
 - b. the person having benefit of the development consent has:
 - i. appointed a principal certifying authority for the building work, and
 - ii. notified the principal certifying authority that the person will carry out the building work as an owner-builder, if that is the case, and
 - c. the person having the benefit of the development consent, if not carrying out the building work as an owner-builder, has:

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- appointed a principal contractor for the building work who must be the holder of a contractor licence if any residential building work is involved, and
- ii. notified the principal certifying authority of any such appointment, and
- iii. unless the person is the principal contractor, notified the principal contractor of any critical stage inspections and other inspections that are to be carried out in respect of the building work, and
- d. the person having the benefit of the development consent has given at least 2 days' notice to the council of the person's intention to commence the building work.
- 14) Prior to the commencement of work, the applicant must provide a temporary on-site toilet if access to existing toilets on site is not adequate.
- 15) A sign shall be displayed on the site indicating the name of the person responsible for the site and a telephone number of which that person can be contacted during and outside normal working hours or when the site is unattended.
- 16) A sign must be erected in a prominent position on any site on which building work or demolition work is being carried out:
 - showing the name, address and telephone number of the principal certifying authority for the work, and
 - b. showing the name of the principal contractor (if any) for any building work and a telephone number on which that person may be contacted outside working hours, and
 - c. stating that unauthorised entry to the work site is prohibited.

Any such sign is to be maintained while the building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out, but must be removed when the work has been completed.

CONDITIONS TO BE SATISFIED DURING CONSTRUCTION

17) The hours of site works shall be limited to between 7.00am and 6.00pm on weekdays and 7.00am and 1.00pm on Saturdays. No work shall be carried out on Sundays and public holidays, and weekends (Saturdays and Sundays) adjacent to public holidays.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

18) The building work must be carried out in accordance with the requirements of the Building Code of Australia.

CONDITIONS TO BE SATISFIED PRIOR TO OCCUPATION

- 19) The occupation or use of the building must not be commenced unless an occupation certificate has been issued for the building.
- 20) A final Occupation Certificate shall not be issued until all conditions relating to demolition, construction and site works of this development consent are satisfied and Council has issued a Work Permit Compliance Certificate (where required).

ITEM 5.2 3 ROWLAND STREET, REVESBY

DEMOLITION OF EXISTING STRUCTURES AND CONSTRUCTION OF A SINGLE-STOREY, 32-PLACE CHILD CARE CENTRE WITH BASEMENT PARKING

(200) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That the application be approved subject to the following conditions.

CONDITIONS OF CONSENT

- The proposal shall comply with the conditions of Development Consent. A
 Construction Certificate shall not be issued until the plans and specifications
 meet the required technical standards and the conditions of this
 Development Consent are satisfied.
- 2) Development shall take place in accordance with Development Application No. DA-129/2016, submitted by Ultra Design and Engineering, accompanied by Drawing No. 1/4 & 2/4, prepared by Ultra Design, dated 27 April 2016 and affixed with Council's approval stamp, except where otherwise altered by the specific amendments listed hereunder and/or except where amended by the conditions contained in this approval.

The development plans shall be amended as follows:

- a) The maximum number of children permitted to be cared for in the centre is thirty two (32).
- b) Detailed design plans shall be provided of the proposed dividing fences, demonstrating how water will be collected from the angled sections, and not allowed to sheet flow onto neighbouring land.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- 3) The food preparation area (kitchen) within the childcare centre must be designed, constructed and operated in accordance with the requirements of:
 - i) The NSW Food Act 2003 and Food Regulation 2015;
 - ii) Australia New Zealand Food Standards Code;
 - iii) Australian Standard 4674-2004, Construction and fitout of food premises;
 - iv) Australian Standard 1668.2-2012, The use of ventilation and air conditioning in buildings Mechanical ventilation in buildings; and
 - v) Australian Standard 1668.1-1998, The use of ventilation and air conditioning in buildings Fire and smoke control in multi-compartment buildings
- 4) The child care centre shall be designed, constructed and operated in accordance with the requirements of the Department of Community Services and the *Children (Education and Care Services) Supplementary Provisions Regulation 2004 (CSPR 2004).*

CONDITIONS TO BE SATISFIED PRIOR TO THE ISSUE OF A CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE

- 5) The Certifying Authority must ensure that any certified plans forming part of the Construction Certificate are not inconsistent with this Development Consent and accompanying plans.
- A detailed landscape plan prepared by a qualified landscape architect is to be approved prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate. The landscape plan is to show all features, built structures including retaining walls, irrigation, mulch and natural features such as significant gardens, landscaping, trees, natural drainage lines and rock outcrops that occur within 3 metres of the site boundary.

The landscape plan shall make provision for the following:

- a) The surface treatment of an outdoor play area must consider the "Best Practice Guidelines in Early Childhood Environments" (NSW Department of Community Services).
- Any landscaping must use hardy species with preference given to native vegetation endemic to the City of Bankstown (refer to Appendix 1 of Part B6: Child Care Centres, of the Bankstown Development Control Plan 2015).
- c) Avoid low branching trees in pedestrian traffic areas, and species with prickly/spiny leaves or fruit.
- d) Landscaping in an outdoor play area must not include the species listed in Appendix 2 of Part B6: Child Care Centres, of the Bankstown Development Control Plan 2015, or any of the following species:

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- plants known to produce toxins;
- plants with high allergen properties;
- plants with profuse scented flowers or known to attract high numbers of bees, spiders, and insects;
- plants with thorns or spiky foliage and branches; and
- any weed or potential weed species.
- e) The landscape plan shall also make provision for planting of appropriate species of plants adjacent to the boundary fence, in order to minimise the likelihood of children coming into contact with the fence.
- 7) The landscape plan shall include the provision for the replacement of boundary fencing as recommended in the Environmental Noise Assessment report No. ACO16/V/J899/05, prepared by ABC Advanced Engineering, dated 15 September 2016, installed along the eastern, western and southern boundary of the child care centre at full cost to the developer. The fence is to be constructed of suitable material specified in the Noise Report unless the type of material is stipulated in any flood study prepared for the site. The colour of the fence is to complement the development and is to be determined in consultation with the adjoining property owners. Fencing forward of the building line shall be no higher than 1m unless otherwise approved by Council.
- 8) Approval in accordance with Council's Tree Preservation Order (TPO) is granted to lop or remove only the trees identified to be lopped or removed on the approved plans. Separate approval shall be obtained to prune or remove trees on adjoining properties or other trees located on the site. Failure to comply with Council's TPO may result in a fine of up to \$100,000.
- 9) The removal of the (2) neighbour trees need to be negotiated between the applicant and property owner of number 1 Rowland Street. A Tree Preservation Order Application Form for removal /prune trees will need to be submitted to Council with the owner's consent for Council's consideration.
- 10) A soil erosion and sediment control plan must be prepared by a suitably qualified professional, in accordance with the Bankstown Demolition and Construction Guidelines and Council's Development Engineering Standards, and submitted to the certifying authority for approval prior to the issue of a construction certificate.
- 11) The Council Approved building plans, including demolition plans, must be submitted to Sydney Water for assessment. This will determine if the proposed structure(s) would affect any Sydney Water infrastructure or if there are additional requirements. Building plan approvals can be submitted online via Sydney Water Tap in™.

Please refer to www.sydneywater.com.au/tapin

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

For Sydney Water's Guidelines for building over or next to assets, visit www.sydneywater.com.au 'Plumbing, building & developing' then 'Building Plan Approvals' or call 13000 TAPIN.

Prior to release of a construction certificate Sydney Water must issue either a Building Plan Assessment letter which states that your application is approved, or the appropriate plans must be stamped by a Water Servicing Coordinator.

- 12) A Construction Certificate shall not be issued until written proof that all bonds, fees and/or contributions as required by this consent have been paid to the applicable authority.
- 13) A long service levy payment which is 0.35% of the total cost of the work is to be paid to the Building and Construction Industry Long Service Payments Corporation.
- 14) Pursuant to section 80A(1) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, and the Bankstown City Council Section 94A Development Contributions Plan 2009 (Section 94A Plan), a contribution of \$4,100 shall be paid to Council.

The amount to be paid is to be adjusted at the time of actual payment, in accordance with the provisions of the Section 94A plan. The contribution is to be paid before the issue of the construction certificate.

Note: The Section 94A Contributions Plans may be inspected at Council's Customer Service Centre, located at Upper Ground Floor, Civic Tower, 66-72 Rickard Road, Bankstown, between the hours of 8.30am-5.00pm Monday to Friday.

- 15) Finished surface levels of all internal works and at the street boundary, including driveways, landscaping and drainage structures, must be as shown on the approved plans. The levels at the street boundary must be consistent with the Street Boundary Alignment Levels issued by Council.
- 16) A Work Permit shall be applied for and obtained from Council for the following engineering works in front of the site, at the applicant's expense:
 - A medium duty VFC of maximum width of 5.5 metres at the property boundary.
 - b) Drainage connection to Council's system.
 - c) 1.2 metre wide paving along the sites entire frontage.
 - Removal of all driveway surfaces, reinstatement of laybacks to kerb and gutter and reshaping of the footway, all associated with redundant VFCs.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- Repair of any damage to the public road including the footway occurring during development works.
- f) Reinstatement of the footway reserve and adjustment or relocation of existing public utility services to match the footway design levels as proposed on the approved Work Permit. Adjustment or relocation to any public utility services shall be carried out to the requirements of the public utility authority.

Note: As a site survey and design is required to be prepared by Council in order to determine the necessary information, payment for the Work Permit should be made at least twenty one (21) days prior to the information being required and must be approved prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate.

- 17) Stormwater drainage from the development shall be designed so as to comply with Council's Development Engineering Standards and the requirements of the BASIX Certificate. A final detailed stormwater drainage design shall be prepared by a qualified Professional Civil Engineer in accordance with the above requirements and shall generally be in accordance with the concept stormwater plan No. Z:\2009\AR'199, issue B dated 04/08/2016 prepared by ULTRA DESIGN & ENGINEERING. The final plan shall be certified by the design engineer that it complies with Council's Development Engineering Standards, the BASIX Certificate and the relevant Australian Standards.
- 18) Where Council approved cut or fill exceeds 200mm and stable batter of 1 vertical to 3 horizontal maximum grade cannot be achieved, then a masonry or other proprietary material retaining wall, intended and suitable for that purpose, shall be constructed within the development site. Note, filling of the site needs specific approval from Council.

The retaining wall shall be located so that it will not impede or obstruct the natural flow of stormwater. Retaining walls exceeding 600mm in height shall be designed by a qualified professional Civil/Structural Engineer. Plans and details prepared and signed by the Engineer are to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate.

All works associated with the construction of the wall, including backfilling and drainage, is to be located wholly within the allotment boundaries.

19) As any works within, or use of, the footway or public road for construction purposes requires separate Council approval under Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993 and/or Section 68 of the Local Government Act 1993, Council requires that prior to any Construction Certificate for this development being issued, evidence of lodgement of an application for a Works Permit and or a Roadway/Footpath Building Occupation Permit shall be obtained where one

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

or more of the following will occur, within, on or over the public footway or public road:

A PRIVATE CERTIFIER CANNOT ISSUE THESE PERMITS

WORKS REQUIRING A 'WORKS PERMIT'

- a) Dig up, disturb, or clear the surface of a public footway or public road,
- b) Remove or interfere with a structure or tree (or any other vegetation) on a public footway or public road,
- c) Connect a road (whether public or private) to a classified road,
- d) Undertake footway, paving, vehicular crossing (driveway), landscaping or stormwater drainage works within a public footway or public road,
- e) Install utilities in, under or over a public road,
- f) Pump water into a public footway or public road from any land adjoining the public road,
- g) Erect a structure or carry out a work in, on or over a public road
- h) Require a work zone on the public road for the unloading and or loading of vehicles
- i) Pump concrete from within a public road,
- j) Stand a mobile crane within a public road
- k) Store waste and recycling containers, skips, bins and/or building materials on any part of the public road.
- I) The work is greater than \$25,000.
- m) Demolition is proposed.
- n) Subdivision is proposed.
- o) A Swimming pool is proposed.

Assessment of Works Permits (a to e) includes the preparation of footway design levels, vehicular crossing plans, dilapidation reports and issue of a Road Opening Permit.

All proposed works within the public road and footway shall be constructed under the supervision and to the satisfaction of Council. The applicant/developer shall arrange for necessary inspections by Council whilst the work is in progress.

For commercial or multi-unit residential developments within the designated CBD or an urban village area, footway design and construction and street tree supply, installation and tree hole detailing shall be as per the Council master plan for that area. Full width footways are to be supplied and installed at full cost to the developer to specification as supplied by Council. Layout plan of pavement to be submitted to Council for approval prior to the issue of the Works Permit.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

All Council fees applicable, minimum restoration charges and inspection fees shall be paid prior to the assessment of the Work Permit in accordance with Council's adopted fees and charges. Note: Additional fees after approval will be charged where the Work Permit requires occupation of the Road or Footpath i.e. Hoardings, Work Zones etc.

In determining a Works Permit, Council can impose conditions and require inspections by Council Officers.

Forms can be obtained from Councils Customer Service counter located on the ground floor of Council's administration building at 66 - 72 Rickard Road, Bankstown or Council's website www.bankstown.nsw.gov.au

Part of any approval will require the person or company carrying out the work to carry public liability insurance to a minimum value of ten million dollars. Proof of the policy is to be provided to Council prior to commencing any work approved by the Work Permit including the Road Opening Permit and must remain valid for the duration of the works.

The commencement of any works on public land, including the footway or public road, may incur an on the spot fine of not less than \$1100 per day that work continues without a Works Permit and/or a Roadway/Footpath Building Occupation Permit.

All conditions attached to the permit shall be strictly complied with prior to occupation of the development. Works non-conforming to Council's specification (includes quality of workmanship to Council's satisfaction) shall be rectified by the Council at the applicant's expense.

- 20) The subject site is located adjacent to a drainage easement and shall comply with the following:
 - a) The proposed building shall be located clear of existing drainage easements within the site. Amended plans to this effect shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate. All approved construction details shall be consistent with this requirement.
 - b) Concrete pier and beam type footings shall be provided for all structures adjacent to the stormwater pipe/easement in accordance with the requirements contained in Council's Development Engineering Standards. Plans and details prepared by a qualified practising Structural Engineer, with details suitable for construction in accordance with the above Policy shall be incorporated into the details for approval of the Construction Certificate.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- c) Landscaping within drainage easement shall be limited to grassed or paved surfaces only. Where pavers are to be used they shall be constructed integral with a concrete base to prevent scour and uplifting. Final details suitable for construction prepared by a qualified professional Civil Engineer shall be submitted to the PCA prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate. A copy of the approved landscaping details shall be submitted to Council for information.
- d) For concrete pavements built over drainage easements full depth construction joints shall be provided along the easement boundary, in accordance with the requirements contained in Council's Development Engineering Standards. Details suitable for construction prepared by a qualified professional Civil Engineer shall be submitted to the PCA prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate. A copy of the approved details shall be submitted to Council for information.
- 21) The pump out drainage system for the access ramp and basement car parking area shall be provided in accordance with Council's Development Engineering Standards. Engineering details and specifications shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) for approval prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate.
- 22) Engineering details and manufacturers specifications for the pumps, switching system and sump pit shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) for approval prior to issue of any Construction Certificate.
- 23) For internal driveways with a gradient exceeding 10% (1 in 10), longitudinal profiles of all vehicular driveways and ramps shall be submitted for approval by the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate. The maximum grade of the driveway/ramp shall not exceed 25% and shall comply with AS 2890.1. The profile shall be drawn at a reduction ratio of 1 to 25 vertical and horizontal and shall be related to the datum used for the issue of the footway design levels and shall also show the road centre line levels, Council issued footway design levels and gutter levels. Council's Car Clearance Profile in Council's Development Engineering Standards, (Plan No. S 006) shall be used to design the profile.
- 24) The sum of the impervious areas associated with the car parking area, driveway and paths must not exceed 55% of the area between the dwellings and the primary frontage.
- 25) All mechanical plant including air-conditioning equipment on the premises shall be selected, located and treated to ensure that the noise level from this equipment does not exceed 5dB(A) above the background noise level when measured at any residential boundary or the window of any residential building.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- 26) The outdoor play space must be adequately shaded in accordance with guidelines published by the NSW Cancer Council under the title Shade for Child Care Services.
- 27) Access for people with disabilities must comply with the BCA and AS 1428 Parts 1 to 4 Design for Access and Mobility.
- 28) All exposed concrete areas in the outdoor area shall be treated with soft play material to reduce noise.
- 29) The acoustic report submitted in support of this application, prepared by ABC Advanced Engineering titled "Environmental Noise Assessment for Proposed Development of Childcare Centre at 3 Rowland Street, Revesby" dated 15 September 2016, Report No. AC016/V/J899/05 and the noise attenuation recommendations stated in section six (6) of the report, forms part of the development consent. The Construction Certificate plans shall incorporate the recommended acoustic measures.

CONDITIONS TO BE SATISFIED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION

- 30) The building / subdivision work in accordance with the development consent must not be commenced until:
 - a. a construction certificate for the building / subdivision work has been issued by the council or an accredited certifier, and
 - b. the person having benefit of the development consent has:
 - appointed a principal certifying authority for the building / subdivision work, and
 - notified the principal certifying authority that the person will carry out the building work as an owner-builder, if that is the case, and
 - c. the person having the benefit of the development consent, if not carrying out the building work as an owner-builder, has:
 - appointed a principal contractor for the building work who must be the holder of a contractor licence if any residential building work is involved, and
 - ii. notified the principal certifying authority of any such appointment, and

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- iii. unless the person is the principal contractor, notified the principal contractor of any critical stage inspections and other inspections that are to be carried out in respect of the building work, and
- d. the person having the benefit of the development consent has given at least 2 days' notice to the council of the person's intention to commence the building / subdivision work.
- 31) Existing trees within the vicinity of the construction works or paths of travel for construction vehicles accessing the development that are to be retained shall be protected with temporary fencing of a style non injurious to tree roots, placed 2m from the trunk base of the existing tree to prevent damage during construction, and retained in accordance with Council's Tree Preservation Order. There is to be no stockpiling of materials within the 2m fenced zone.
- 32) Approval is granted for the removal of the following tree:

Tree Species	Location: Rowland Street frontage
(1) Callistemon viminalis,	Forward of the property / Councils nature
(Weeping bottlebrush)	strip

- The tree removal works are subject to the following conditions:
- All tree works must be carried out by a qualified arborist (minimum qualifications AQF Level 3 or equivalent);
- The tree removal contractor must hold a Public Liability Insurance Certificate of Currency with a minimum indemnity of \$20 million, together with a NSW Workers Compensation Insurance Certificate of Currency;
- The tree removal work must comply with the <u>Amenity Tree Industry Code of Practice</u>, 1998 (Workcover, NSW);
- The tree stump is to be ground to 300mm below ground level.
 Investigation to locate underground services shall be the responsibility of the applicant.
- All tree material shall be removed from site, and the nature strip shall be backfilled, compacted and restored to the original level.
- The site must be maintained in a safe condition at all times;
- Appropriate hazard signage to be in place at all times during the tree works.

All other street vegetation not specifically identified above is to be retained and protected from construction damage and pruning.

33) The Applicant undertake root mapping by hand using an air spade or similar and running parallel with the applicants boundary fence to locate any possible

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

structural roots that would be impacted by the proposed works. No roots greater than 30mm in diameter are to be severed and the exposed area must be filled in within 2.0 hours of being exposed and the affected areas watered to field capacity and allowed to drain. The works must be undertaken with advice from a consulting arborist with minimum AQF (Australian Qualification Network) Level 5 in Arboriculture.

- 34) Suitable erosion and sediment control measures shall be erected in accordance with the plans accompanying the Construction Certificate prior to the commencement of construction works and shall be maintained at all times.
- 35) Council warning sign for Soil and Water Management must be displayed on the most prominent point of the site, visible to both the street and site works. The sign must be displayed throughout the construction period.
- 36) Prior to the commencement of work, the applicant must provide a temporary on-site toilet if access to existing toilets on site is not adequate.
- 37) A section 73 compliance certificate under the Sydney Water Act 1994 must be obtained from Sydney Water Corporation. Make early application for the certificate, as there may be water and sewer pipes to be built and this can take some time. This can also impact on other services and building, driveway or landscape design.
 - Application must be made through an authorised Water Servicing Coordinator. For help either visit www.sydneywater.com.au > Building and Developing > Developing your Land > Water Servicing Coordinator or telephone 13 20 92.
- 38) Prior to the commencement of work, a fence must be erected around the area of the works, except where an existing 1.8m high boundary fence is in good condition and is capable of securing the area. Any new fencing shall be temporary (such as cyclone wire) and at least 1.8m high. All fencing is to be maintained for the duration of construction to ensure that the work area is secured.
 - Where the work is located within 3.6m of a public place then a Type A or Type B hoarding must be constructed appropriate to the works proposed. An application for a Work Permit for such hoarding must be submitted to Council for approval prior to the commencement of work.
- 39) A sign shall be displayed on the site indicating the name of the person responsible for the site and a telephone number of which that person can be contacted during and outside normal working hours or when the site is unattended.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- 40) A sign must be erected in a prominent position on any site on which building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out:
 - a. showing the name, address and telephone number of the principal certifying authority for the work, and
 - showing the name of the principal contractor (if any) for any building work and a telephone number on which that person may be contacted outside working hours, and
 - c. stating that unauthorised entry to the work site is prohibited.

Any such sign is to be maintained while the building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out, but must be removed when the work has been completed.

- 41) Permission is granted for the demolition of structures currently existing on the property, subject to strict compliance with the following:
 - a) The developer is to notify adjoining residents seven (7) working days prior to demolition. Such notification is to be clearly written on A4 size paper giving the date demolition will commence and be placed in the letterbox of every premises (including every residential flat or unit, if any) either side, immediately at the rear of, and directly opposite the demolition site.
 - b) Written notice is to be given to Canterbury-Bankstown Council for inspection prior to demolition. Such written notice is to include the date when demolition will commence and details of the name, address, business hours and contact telephone number and licence number of the demolisher. The following building inspections shall be undertaken by Canterbury-Bankstown Council:
 - (i) A precommencement inspection shall be carried out by Council when all the site works required as part of this consent are installed on the site and prior to demolition commencing.
 - (ii) A final inspection shall be carried out by Council when the demolition works have been completed to ensure that the site is left in a satisfactory manner, in accordance with the conditions of this consent.

NOTE: Payment of an inspection fee at Council's current rate will be required prior to each inspection. Council requires 24 hours notice to

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

carry out inspections. Arrangements for inspections can be made by phoning **9707 9410, 9707 9412** or **9707 9635.**

- c) Prior to demolition, the applicant must erect a sign at the front of the property with the demolisher's name, license number, contact phone number and site address.
- d) Prior to demolition, the applicant must erect a 2.4m high temporary fence or hoarding between the work site and any public place. Access to the site shall be restricted to Authorised Persons Only and the site shall be secured against unauthorised entry when the building work is not in progress or the site is otherwise unoccupied. Where demolition is to occur within 3m of a public place a Work Permit application for the construction of a Class A or Class B hoarding shall be submitted to Council for approval.
- e) The demolition plans must be submitted to the appropriate Sydney Water Office to determine whether the development will affect Sydney Water's sewer and water mains, stormwater drains and/or easements. If the development complies with Sydney Water's requirements, the demolition plans will be stamped indicating that no further requirements are necessary.
- f) Demolition is to be carried out in accordance with the appropriate provisions of Australian Standard AS2601-2001.
- g) The hours of demolition work shall be limited to between 7.00am and 6.00pm on weekdays, 7.00am and 1.00pm on Saturdays and no work shall be carried out on Sundays and public holidays, and weekends (Saturdays and Sundays) adjacent to public holidays.
- h) Where materials containing asbestos cement are to be removed, demolition is to be carried out by licensed contractors who have current Workcover Accreditation in asbestos removal.
- i) Hazardous or intractable wastes arising from the demolition process shall be removed and disposed of in accordance with the requirements of WorkCover NSW and the NSW EPA 'Environmental Guidelines: Assessment, Classification and Management of Liquid and Non-Liquid Wastes 2004'.
- Demolition procedures shall maximise the reuse and recycling of demolished materials in order to reduce the environmental impacts of waste disposal.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- k) During demolition, the public footway and public road shall be clear at all times and shall not be obstructed by any demolished material or vehicles. The public road and footway shall be swept (NOT hosed) clean of any material, including clay, soil and sand. (NOTE: If required, Council will clean the public road/footway at the applicant's expense). On the spot fines may be levied by Council against the demolisher and or owner for failure to comply with this condition.
- All vehicles leaving the site with demolition materials shall have their loads covered and vehicles shall not track soil and other material onto the public roads and footways and the footway shall be suitably protected against damage when plant and vehicles access the site. All loading of vehicles with demolished materials shall occur on site.
- m) The burning of any demolished material on site is not permitted and offenders will be prosecuted.
- n) Care shall be taken during demolition to ensure that existing services on the site (i.e. sewer, electricity, gas, phone) are not damaged. Any damage caused to existing services shall be repaired by the relevant authority at the applicant's expense.
- Suitable erosion and sediment control measures shall be erected prior to the commencement of demolition works and shall be maintained at all times.
- p) Prior to the demolition of any building constructed before 1970, a Work Plan shall be prepared and submitted to Council in accordance with Australian Standard AS2601-2001 by a person with suitable expertise and experience. The Work Plan shall outline the identification of any hazardous materials, including surfaces coated with lead paint, method of demolition, the precautions to be employed to minimise any dust nuisance and the disposal methods for hazardous materials.
- 42) A dilapidation report for the buildings located to the east, south and west of the site is to be completed and submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority prior to the excavation work commencing on the site. The report shall include details of the structural conditions of the existing buildings. On the completion of the proposed work, and prior to the issue of the final compliance certificate, a certificate prepared by an appropriately qualified engineer, to the effect that no damage has resulted to the adjoining premises is to be provided to the Principal Certifying Authority. If damage is identified which is considered to require rectification, the damage shall be rectified or satisfactory agreement for rectification of the damage, is to be made with the affected person/s, as soon as possible and prior to occupation of the development

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

CONDITIONS TO BE SATISFIED DURING CONSTRUCTION

- 43) The hours of site works shall be limited to between 7.00am and 6.00pm on weekdays and 7.00am and 1.00pm on Saturdays. No work shall be carried out on Sundays and public holidays, and weekends (Saturdays and Sundays) adjacent to public holidays.
- The building work must be carried out in accordance with the requirements of the Building Code of Australia.
- 45) Prior to the ground floor slab being poured, an identification report by a Registered Surveyor must be submitted to the principal certifying authority verifying that the proposed buildings finished ground floor level and siting to the property boundaries conforms to the approved plans.
- 46) All Civil and Hydraulic engineering works on site must be carried out in accordance with Council's Development Engineering Standards. All Civil and Hydraulic engineering works associated with Council's assets and infrastructure must be carried out in accordance with Council's Work Permit requirements and to Council's satisfaction.
- 47) All excavations and backfilling must be executed safely and in accordance with the relevant Australian Standards.
- 48) If soil conditions require it, retaining walls or other approved methods of preventing movement of the soil must be provided, and adequate provisions must be made for drainage. Separate approval may be required for retaining walls should they be required.
- 49) If the development involves an excavation that extends below the level of the base of the footings of a building on adjoining land, the person having the benefit of the development consent must, at the person's own expense:
 - a. protect and support the adjoining premises from possible damage from the excavation, and
 - b. where necessary, underpin the adjoining premises to prevent any such damage.
- 50) Boundary fencing along the eastern, western and southern boundary of the child care centre shall be constructed in accordance with the Environmental Noise Assessment report No. AC016/V/J899/05, prepared by ABC Advanced Engineering, dated 15 September 2016. The fencing is to be constructed at full cost to the developer. The fence is to be constructed of suitable material

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

specified in the Noise Report unless the type of material is stipulated in any flood study prepared for the site. The colour of the fence is to complement the development and is to be determined in consultation with the adjoining property owners. Fencing forward of the building line shall be no higher than 1m unless otherwise approved by Council.

- 51) The stormwater drainage system shall be constructed in accordance with Council's Development Engineering Standards and the engineering plans and details approved by the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA).
- 52) The applicant shall apply to the Bankstown Traffic Committee and to the satisfaction of Council's Traffic Engineer for the entire frontage on Rowland Street to be zoned "P15 Minute 7am-6pm Mon-Fri" at the applicant's cost.
- Prior to the commencement of work, the builder shall prepare a photographic record of the road reserve which clearly shows its condition prior to works occurring on site. For the entirety of demolition, subdivision or construction works, there shall be no stockpiling of building spoil, materials, or storage of equipment on the public road, including the footway and the road reserve shall be maintained in a safe condition at all times. No work shall be carried out on the public road, including the footway, unless a Work Permit authorised by Council has been obtained.
- Any warm-water system installed in the premises, must be installed, operated and maintained in accordance with the prescribed requirements in the *Public Health Act 2010* and *Public Health Regulation 2012*. A warm-water system is defined as a system being designed to heat and deliver water at a temperature of less than 60°C and includes thermostatic mixing valves. The warm water system must be registered with Council.

55) Wall Construction

All walls in the child care centre, including all new and existing partition walls, must be of solid construction and finished to a smooth, impervious surface that can be easily cleaned, as specified in Table 3.2 of Australian Standard 4674-2004. The finishing materials of the wall surfaces shall provide an even surface, free of buckles and ledges, fixing screws, open joint spaces, cracks or crevices. Cavity walls are not permitted.

56) Floor Construction

The floor construction within the food preparation (kitchen) area must be finished to a smooth, even non-slip surface, graded and drained to a floor waste connected to a sewer.

Floor wastes are to consist of a removable basket within a fixed basket arrestor and are to comply with the requirements of Sydney Water.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

57) Coving

Approved, recessed coving must be provided at all intersections of the floor with the walls/plinths within the manufacturing area. All coving must:

- a) Have a minimum concave radius of 25mm; or
- b) Be tiled 50mm minimum in width and splayed at 45°.

The coving must be installed so as to be integral to the surface finish of both the floor and wall in such a manner as to form a continuous, uninterrupted surface. Feather edge skirting and non-rebated coving are not permitted

58) Ceiling Construction

The ceiling must be constructed with a rigid, non-absorbent, smooth faced material free from open joints, cracks and crevices and be painted with a light coloured washable paint. The intersection of the walls and ceiling must be tight-jointed, sealed and dust proofed. Drop-in panel style ceilings are not permitted in the manufacturing area or over areas where open food is displayed, handled or served.

59) Light Fittings

All light fittings must be fitted with a smooth faced diffuser. The light fittings must be either:

- a) Recessed so that the diffuser is flush with the ceiling; or
- Designed to ensure that no horizontal surfaces exist which would allow dust and grease to accumulate.

60) Penetrations/Service Lines

All service pipes, electrical conduit must be either:

- a) Concealed in floors, walls, ceilings or plinths; or
- b) Fixed with brackets so as to provide at least a 25mm clearance between the wall and the service line and 100mm clearance between the floor and the service line.

61) Preparation Benches

All food preparation benches must be constructed of stainless steel. All food contact surfaces are to be smooth, continuous and flush so as to avoid any exposed screw fixtures. The top and exposed edges of all benches and counters must be finished in a smooth and non-absorbent material, free of joints, cracks and crevices.

62) Storage Cabinets/Cupboards

All storage cabinets/cupboards (internal and external surfaces) must be finished in a smooth and non-absorbent material that is free of joints.

63) <u>Fixtures and Fittings</u>

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

All fixtures, fittings and equipment must be provided with smooth and impervious surfaces, free from cracks and crevices to enable easy cleaning. False bottoms under fittings are not permitted.

All fittings and fixtures must be built into the wall and floor so to be free from joints, gaps and cavities to enable easy cleaning or alternatively, supported on one of the following in accordance with Table 4.5 of Australian Standard 4674-2004:

- a) Plinths must be an integral part of the floor, constructed of solid materials similar to the floor, at least 75mm in height and coved at the intersection with the floor. All plinths must have a smooth and impervious finish. All fittings and fixtures must be properly sealed to the plinth so to be free from gaps, cracks and cavities;
- Fittings and fixtures can be supported on wheels or castors. The wheels and castors must be capable of supporting and easily moving a full loaded fitting. All wheels and castors must be provided with a restraining device; or
- c) Fittings and fixtures can be supported on legs but must be constructed of non-corrosive, smooth metal or moulded plastic. All legs must be free from cracks and crevices. All legs must have a clearance space between the floor and the underside of the fitting of at least 150mm.

64) Shelving

All shelving must be located at least 25mm off the wall or alternatively, the intersection of the shelf and the wall must be completely sealed. All shelving must be constructed at least 150mm from the floor level.

65) Hot Water Service Unit

The hot water service unit must be positioned at least 75mm clear of the adjacent wall surfaces and mounted at a minimum 150mm above the floor level on a non-corrosive metal stand. The hot water system must be of adequate size to enable a sufficient amount of hot water to all washing facilities throughout the working day.

66) Mechanical Exhaust Ventilation

A food premises must be provided with a kitchen exhaust hood complying with Australia Standard 1668.2-2012 and 1668.1-1998, where:

- a) Any cooking apparatus has:
 - i. A total maximum electrical power input exceeding 8 kW; or
 - ii. A total gas power input exceeding 29 MJ/h; or
- b) The total maximum power input to more than one apparatus exceeds:

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- i. 0.5 kW electrical power; or
- ii. 1.8 MJ gas per m² of floor area of the room or enclosure; or

c) Any deep fryer.

Prior to the issue of any Occupation Certificate or the occupation or use of the premises, certification from a suitably qualified professional engineer shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority verifying that the exhaust system in the premises is installed and constructed in accordance with Australian Standard 1668.2-2012 and 1668.1-1998.

All mechanical exhaust ventilation systems shall be serviced regularly in accordance with the manufacturers and/or installers specifications. A record of all maintenance activities to the exhaust extraction equipment shall be maintained at the premises and provided to Council upon request.

67) Toilet Facilities

A toilet for staff must be provided within the premises. The toilet cubicle must be separated from areas where open food is handled, displayed or stored by one of the following:

- a) An intervening ventilated space fitted with self-closing doors; or
- b) Self-closing doors and mechanical exhaust systems that operate when the sanitary compartment is in use for at least 30 seconds after the cubicle is vacated.

A hand wash basin must be located within the toilet cubicle. The hand wash basin must be freestanding, serviced with hot and cold water through a single outlet, able to be mixed to a temperature of at least 40°C and fitted with a hands-off type tap set. The hand wash basin must be provided with soap and disposable paper towels from a dispenser.

68) Hand Wash Basins

Hand wash basins must be provided in all parts of the premises where open food is handled and in utensil/equipment washing areas. Each hand wash basin is to be located and installed in such a way that they are not obstructed, are at bench height, either permanently fixed to a wall, to a supporting frame or set in a bench top and are accessible no further than five (5) metres away from any place where food handlers are handling open food.

Each hand wash basin is to have a permanent supply of warm running potable water mixed to a temperature of at least 40°C and delivered through a single outlet. Disposable paper hand towels and soap must be provided and serviced from a dispenser adjacent to the hand wash basin. A waste receptacle for used towels shall be provided.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

69) Equipment Wash Sinks

A double bowl wash sink must be installed and serviced with hot and cold water through a single outlet.

A triple bowl sink must be installed and serviced with hot and cold water through a single outlet where rinsing is required before or after sanitising e.g. wash, rinse, sanitise procedure or wash, rinse/sanitise, rinse procedure.

Equipment wash sinks shall be provided with water at a temperature of not less than –

- a) 45°C for washing operations; and
- b) 80°C for sanitising if hot water sanitising takes place at the sink.

Equipment wash sinks shall be adequately sized to enable effective washing and sanitising of the largest piece of equipment.

70) <u>Dishwashing Machines</u>

Any dishwashing machine must be designed and able to operate in accordance with Australian Standard 4674-2004 and the Food Standards Code. All utensils and equipment must undergo a washing, sanitising and rinsing cycle. The sanitizing rinse cycle must achieve a water temperature of 80½C for two (2) minutes or 75½C for 10 minutes.

Appropriate ventilation must be provided over the dishwashing system and be designed and installed in accordance with Australian Standard 1668.2-2012.

71) Cleaning Facilities

A cleaner's sink with a supply of hot and cold water must be provided for the purposes of general cleaning. Alternatively, hot and cold wall mounted taps must be installed fitted with hose connectors and positioned at least 600mm above the floor in a convenient and accessible location within the food preparation area and adjacent to the floor waste.

72) Storage Facilities

Adequate provision must be made for the storage of all staff personal belongings, cleaning chemicals and equipment.

73) Waste Storage Area/Room

The waste storage area/room must be provided with smooth and impervious walls and floors and coved at the intersection of the floor and walls. Floor areas must be graded and drained to a floor waste gully connected to the sewer. Waste storage rooms must be well ventilated and proofed against pests. The area or room must be provided with water service hose connectors to enable easy cleaning.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

Open waste storage areas must be appropriately covered and bunded. The ground shall be paved with impervious material and shall be graded and drained to a waste water disposal system according to Sydney Water's requirements. A hose tap connected to a water supply shall be provided.

74) Waste & Recycling Storage, Collection and Disposal

All waste generated on the site is to be stored, handled and disposed of in such a manner as to not create offensive odour, offensive noise or pollution of land and/or water as defined under the *Protection of the Environment Operations Acct 1997*. All waste generated shall be disposed of by an authorised contractor.

Details of a Trade Waste Agreement with Sydney Water must be submitted to Council. If no Trade Waste Agreement or grease trap is required, a letter from Sydney Water is to be submitted to the accredited certifier to this effect.

CONDITIONS TO BE SATISFIED PRIOR TO OCCUPATION

- 75) The occupation or use of the building must not be commenced unless an occupation certificate has been issued for the building.
- 76) A final Occupation Certificate shall not be issued until all conditions relating to demolition, construction and site works of this development consent are satisfied and Council has issued a Work Permit Compliance Certificate.
- 77) Landscaping is to be installed in accordance with the approved landscape plan. All works and methods nominated and materials and plants specified on the approved landscape plan are to be completed prior to the issue of an occupation certificate. The landscaping shall be maintained for the life of the development.
- 78) The applicant is to plant the following replacement tree on the nature strip forward of the property. The tree shall have a container size not less than <u>75</u> <u>litres</u>, shall comply with <u>NATSPEC Specifying Trees</u>: a guide to assessment of <u>tree quality</u> (2003), and be planted and maintained in accordance with Councils street tree planting specifications Standard Drawing No. S-202:

Tree Species	Location 3 Rowland Street Revesby
(1) Waterhousea	Tree is to be planted on the eastern boundary
floribunda ' Green	of proposed vehicle footpath crossing no
Avenue' (Weeping lilly	closer than 2.5 metres from the edge of the
pilly).	vehicle crossing including (layback) 2.0 metres

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

from any electricity pole and 1.5 metres from
the kerb and gutter.

Investigation to locate underground services shall be the responsibility of the applicant. Should such services be located and there is a reasonable belief that damage may occur to those services by the new planting, the applicant is to:

- a. Carry out engineering works to protect those services from damage; or
- b. Relocate the plantings to a more suitable location following written approval from Bankstown City Council; or
- c. Substitute the approved tree species with an alternative species following written approval from Bankstown City Council.

The tree is to be planted to the satisfaction of Councils Tree Management Officer. The Applicant shall contact Councils Tree Management Officer to arrange for a site inspection of the completed tree planting prior to the issue of an occupation certificate.

- 79) The premises must be readily identified from the street with the allocated house numbers. Numbering of the development without Council's written approval is not permitted. An official "house numbering" letter will be sent to the applicant indicating the proposed house numbers of the new development. Note: The house numbers of the development are subject to change depending of the type on subdivision that may occur at a later stage.
- 80) A registered surveyor shall prepare a Work As Executed Plan, and a suitably qualified Hydraulic Engineer shall provide certification of the constructed onsite stormwater detention system.

The Work As Executed information shall be shown in red on a copy of the approved stormwater plan and shall include all information specified in Council's Development Engineering Standards. The Work As Executed plan shall be submitted to the Hydraulic Engineer prior to certification of the onsite stormwater detention system.

The engineer's certification of the on-site stormwater detention system should be carried out similar to Council's standard form "On-Site Stormwater Detention System - Certificate of Compliance", contained in Council's Development Engineering Standards.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

A copy of the Work As Executed Plan and Hydraulic Engineer's Certification shall be submitted to Council for information prior to issue of the final occupation certificate.

81) The developer shall register, on the title of the subject property, a Restriction on the Use of Land and Positive Covenant, in accordance with the standard terms for "Registration of OSD on title", as outlined in Council's Development Engineering Standards and in accordance with the appropriate provisions of the Conveyancing Act.

Note: The location of the "On-Site Stormwater Detention System" shall be shown on the plan of subdivision where subdivision is proposed. Where subdivision is not proposed the location of the "On-Site Stormwater Detention System" shall be included on an A4 size site plan attached to the Section 88E Instrument and registered on the title prior to the issue of the final occupation certificate.

The developer shall submit to Council evidence of the final registration of the Restriction and Positive Covenant on the title of the property.

- 82) A Copy of the Work Permit Compliance Certificate shall be submitted to the PCA Prior to the issue of the Occupation Certificate.
- 83) The Section 73 compliance certificate under the Sydney Water Act 1994 must be submitted to the principal certifying authority before occupation of the development / release of the plan of subdivision.
- Any lighting of the premises shall be installed in accordance with Australian Standard 4282-1997, Control of the obtrusive effects of outdoor lighting so as to avoid annoyance to the occupants of adjoining premises or glare to motorists on nearby roads. Flashing, moving or intermittent lights or signs are prohibited. The intensity, colour or hours of illumination of the lights shall be varied at Council's discretion if Council considers there to be adverse effects on the amenity of the area.
- 85) Operation must not commence until a final inspection has been carried out by Council's Environmental Health Officer and all conditions of this consent have been complied with.
- 86) Operation must not commence until an inspection of the premises has been carried out by the Principal Certifying Authority and all conditions of this consent have been complied with.
- 87) The food premises must be registered with Council so that regular inspections can be carried out to ensure that food hygiene standards are maintained, by completing the Application for Registration form prior to operation.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

88) Verification is to be submitted, prepared by a qualified acoustic consultant that the recommended measures in the Environmental Noise Assessment report No. AC016/V/J899/05, prepared by ABC Advanced Engineering, dated 15 September 2016, have been satisfactorily implemented.

USE OF THE SITE

- 89) Car parking spaces for five (5) vehicles shall be provided in marked spaces in the manner generally shown on the approved site plan. The car parking spaces, driveways and manoeuvring areas are to be used for employees and visitors vehicles only and not for the storage of new or used materials, finished goods or commercial vehicles.
- 90) The childcare centre is restricted to a maximum of thirty two (32) children at any one time. The maximum of 32 children cannot be made up of more than the following numbers of children in the following age groups:

Less than 24 months – not more than 4 children 24-36 months – not more than 10 children Over 36 months – not more than 20 children

- 91) The hours of operation are restricted to 7.00am to 6.00pm Monday to Friday.
- 92) All waste materials associated with the use shall be stored in containers located either within the building or behind screen walls in accordance with the approved plans.
- 93) The use of the premises shall not contravene the *Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997.* The operation of the premise shall be carried out in accordance with the requirement of the NSW EPA, where relevant.
- 94) Identification number/s are to be conspicuously displayed at the front of the premises.
- 95) No external signage is approved under this development consent. External signage details must be submitted to Council for approval prior to installation.
- 96) The childcare centre shall be operated in accordance with the requirements of the Department of Community Services at all times.
- 97) All windows and doors shall remain closed during indoor activities.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- 98) All mechanical equipment including air conditioner shall operate within 5 dB(A) of the background noise level when in use.
- 99) All chemicals shall be stored, handled and disposed of in accordance with
 - a) AS1940-1993. The Storage and Handling of Flammable and Combustible Liquids.
 - Department of Environment and Conservation's Environment Protection Manual for Authorised Officers: Technical Section (Bunding and Spill Management)
 - c) Department of Environment and Conservation's Guidelines titled "Assessment, Classification and Management of Liquid and Non Liquid Wastes 1999" and the Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997.
- 100) Instructions concerning procedures to be adopted in the event of an emergency are to be clearly displayed on the premises for both public and staff information at all times.
- 101) Signs reminding staff and visitors to minimise noise at all times shall be installed at ingress/egress points from the childcare centre.
- 102) To minimise the noise impact on the surrounding environment, the use of the premises, building services, equipment, machinery and ancillary fittings shall not give rise to "offensive noise" as defined under the provisions of the *Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997*.
- 103) Any activity carried out in accordance with this approval shall not give rise to offensive odour, offensive noise or pollution of air, land or water as defined in the *Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997* and Regulations; and
- 104) The implementation of this development shall not adversely affect the amenity of the neighbourhood or interfere unreasonably with the comfort or repose of a person who is outside the premises by reason of the emission or discharge of noise, fumes, vapour, odour, steam, soot, ash, dust, waste water, waste products, grit, oil or other harmful products.
- 105) A noise management plan shall be prepared and implemented within one (1) month of the commencement of the childcare centre operation. The management plan shall provide for measures that:
 - a) Ensure children are supervised at all times to minimise noise generated by children.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- b) Install a contact phone number at the front of the centre so that any complaints regarding centre operation can be made.
- c) Implement a complaint handling procedure. If a noise complaint is received the complaint should be recorded on a Complaint form. The complaint form should list:
 - i) The name and address of the complainant (if provided).
 - ii) The time and date the complaint was received.
 - iii) The nature of the complaint and the time and date the noise was heard.
 - iv) The name of the employee who received the complaint.
 - v) Actions taken to investigate the complaint, and a summary of the results of the investigation.
 - vi) Indicate what was occurring at the time the noise was heard, if possible.
 - vii) Required remedial action.
 - viii) Summary of feedback to the complainant.
- 106) A permanent register of complaints shall be held on the premises, which shall be reviewed monthly by staff to ensure all complaints are being responded to. All complaints received shall be reported to management with initial action/investigation commencing within 7 days. The complainant should also be notified of the results and actions arising from the investigation.
- 107) The operator of the child care centre is to organise and chair a Neighbourhood Liaison Committee, within one (1) month of the commencement of the operation of the child care centre. The purpose of the Committee is for the operator and neighbours to resolve any issues, such as traffic and noise, arising from the operation of the child care centre. The operation of the Committee must ensure:
 - (a) The membership of the Neighbourhood Liaison Committee must include residents who live next to and opposite the child care centre.
 - (b) The Neighbourhood Liaison Committee must meet at least four times during the first twenty four (24) months of the child care centre operating.
 - (c) The operator of the child care centre must forward the meeting minutes to Committee members.
 - (d) The operator of the child care centre may forward the meeting minutes to Council for information purposes.
 - (e) The operator of the child care centre may terminate the Committee once it meets at least four times during the first 24 months of the child care centre operating, or may choose to extend the function of the Committee over a longer period of time.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

ITEM 5.3 220-222 SOUTH TERRACE, BANKSTOWN

DEMOLITION OF EXISTING DWELLING ON NO. 220 AND COMMERCIAL STRUCTURES AT NO. 222, CONSOLIDATION OF TWO (2) LOTS, RELOCATION OF EXISTING SEWER PIPE, CONSTRUCTION OF TWO (2) STOREYS OF BASEMENT CAR PARKING AND AT GRADE PARKING, CONSTRUCTION OF A NINE (9) STOREY MIXED USE BUILDING COMPRISING OF GROUND FLOOR COMMERCIAL PREMISES AND NINETY ONE (91) RESIDENTIAL UNITS WITH ASSOCIATED SERVICES, ON-SITE LANDSCAPING AND SITE WORKS

(201) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That the application be approved on a deferred commencement basis subject to the following conditions.

DEFERRED COMMENCEMENT REQUIREMENTS (Schedule A)

The following deferred commencement conditions must be complied with to the satisfaction of Council within twelve (12) months of the date of this deferred commencement consent, prior to the issue of an operational development consent:

This consent is not to operate until the Applicant satisfies the Council, within 12 months of the date of this consent, that it has obtained approval/certification from Sydney Trains as to the following matters and the approval/certification has been forwarded to the Council:

A1

The Applicant shall prepare and provide to Sydney Trains for approval/certification the following items:

- 1. Geotechnical and Structural report/drawings that meet Sydney Trains requirements. The Geotechnical Report must be based on actual borehole testing conducting on the site closest to the rail corridor.
- 2. Construction methodology with construction details pertaining to structural support during excavation. The Applicant is to be aware that Sydney Trains will not permit any rock anchors/bolts (whether temporary or permanent) within its land or easements.
- 3. Cross sectional drawings showing the tunnel easement, tunnel location, sub soil profile, proposed basement excavation and structural design of sub ground support adjacent to the rail corridor. All measurements are to be verified by a Registered Surveyor.
- Detailed Survey Plan showing the relationship of the proposed developed with respect to Sydney Trains easement and tunnel location.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

5. If required by Sydney Trains, an FE analysis which assesses the different stages of loading-unloading of the site and its effect on the rock mass surrounding the rail corridor.

Any conditions issued as part of Sydney Trains approval/certification of the above documents will also form part of the consent conditions that the Applicant is required to comply with.

FORESHADOWED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL (Schedule B)

The following conditions of consent including any other conditions that may arise from resolution of matters listed in Schedule A, will be included in an operational development consent that will be issued by Council after the applicant provides information sufficient to satisfy Council in relation to the condition of the deferred commencement consent:

CONDITIONS OF CONSENT

- The proposal shall comply with the conditions of Development Consent. A
 Construction Certificate shall not be issued until the plans and specifications
 meet the required technical standards and the conditions of this
 Development Consent are satisfied.
- Development shall take place in accordance with Development Application No.DA-1314/2015, submitted by PSEC Project Services, accompanied by Drawing No.
 - D2001 Floor Plan Basement 2 Revision C dated 21 July 2016
 - D2002 Floor Plan Basement 1 Revision C dated 21 July 2016
 - D2003 Floor Plan Ground Level Revision C dated 21 July 2016
 - D2004 Floor Plan Level 1 Revision C dated 21 July 2016
 - D2005 Floor Plan Level 2-3 (typical) Revision C dated 21 July 2016
 - D2006 Floor Plan Level 4-8 (typical) Revision C dated 21 July 2016
 - D2007 Floor Plan Communal Roof Plan Revision C dated 21 July 2016
 - D3000 North/West elevations and schedule of finishes Revision C dated 21 July 2016
 - D3001 South/East elevations and schedule of finishes Revision C dated 21 July 2016
 - D3002 Internal South/East elevations and schedule of finishes Revision C dated 21 July 2016
 - D4000 Sections A & B Revision C dated 21 July 2016
 - D4001 Sections Vehicular access ramp detailed section Revision C dated 21 July 2016

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

prepared by PSEC Projects Services, and affixed with Council's approval stamp, except where otherwise altered by the specific amendments listed hereunder and/or except where amended by the conditions contained in this approval.

3) Ausgrid has both overhead & underground cables in the vicinity of this development. The developer is to ensure that the works do not contravene Ausgrid's Technical Standards and statutory requirements with regards to the safe and reliable operation and maintenance of its network.

Any work undertaken near overhead power lines needs to be done in accordance with:

- Workcover Document ISSC 23 "Working Near Overhead Power Lines".
- Ausgrid's Network Standards. In particular NS220 "Overhead Design Section 13 Clearances"
- Ausgrid's Electrical Safety Rules.

Excavation works near underground cables needs to be done in accordance with Ausgrid Network Standard 156 "Working Around Ausgrid Cables"

In addition, the developer will need to submit an "Application for Connection" to determine the method of supply to the development as a substation maybe required on the premises. Applications for Connections can be made to our Connections Group using their email "contestability@ausgrid.com.au"

- 4) No approval is granted or implied for the use of the commercial tenancy. Separate Development Consent for the use of the commercial floor space is required prior to occupation.
- 5) Prior to the commencement of works, a dilapidation report shall be prepared by the developer and a copy provided to directly adjoining property owners to the south and the east of the subject site. The report must clearly identify the condition of existing structures on adjoining properties prior to the commencement of works. All care shall be taken during the construction process to ensure adjoining structures are protected, and should any change in condition occur from that recorded in the dilapidation report, the rectification of such shall be at full cost to the developer of the subject site.
- 6) In order to achieve the energy efficiency requirements of Clause 4.4A of the BLEP 2015, the commercial floor space must achieve the following as a minimum standard:

Energy

Lighting efficiency with a minimum average of 70 lumens per watt.
 This is equivalent to a mix of fluorescent and LED lighting in all fittings.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- Motion and daylight sensors in all common areas.
- Air conditioning (air or water cooled) with an overall co-efficient of performance (CoP) of 5 or greater.

Water

- 5-star WELS rated tapware in kitchen and bathroom tap fittings.
- 4-star WELS rated toilets.
- Where showerheads are installed, 4.5-6L/min showerhead.
- Waterless urinals (where urinals installed).

The construction certificate plans shall be consistent with the above requirements.

An Acoustic Report, prepared by a suitably qualified acoustics consultant demonstrating that the proposed development will comply with the requirements the Department of Planning's document titled "Development Near Rail Corridors and Busy Roads- Interim Guidelines" and the State Rail Publication "Rail related Noise and Vibration Guidelines", shall be prepared and submitted to Council or the PCA prior to the release to the Construction Certificate. The Construction Certificate plans shall include all of the attenuation measures recommended in the Acoustics Report. The development shall be constructed to include all of the recommended attenuation measures and the acoustic consultant shall certify that all recommendations have been incorporated into the development prior to the issue of the Occupation Certificate.

The Construction Certificate plans shall ensure that the following LAeq levels are not exceeded:

- In any bedroom in the development 35dB(A) at any time between 10pm and 7am; and
- Anywhere else in the residential parts of the development (other than a garage, kitchen, bathroom or hallway) – 40dB(A) at any time.

A report from a qualified acoustic consultant shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) confirming that this condition is complied with.

8) The "Deferred Commencement" documentation submitted to satisfy Schedule A forms part of this consent. The Construction Certificate plans must be consistent with the requirements set out.

CONDITIONS TO BE SATISFIED PRIOR TO THE ISSUE OF A CONSTRUCTION CERTIFICATE

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

Prior to the release of a Construction Certificate the following conditions MUST be satisfied and nominated fees/contributions/bonds paid:

- 9) The Certifying Authority must ensure that any certified plans forming part of the Construction Certificate are not inconsistent with this Development Consent and accompanying plans.
- A detailed landscape plan prepared by a qualified landscape architect or designer is to be approved prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate. The landscape plan is to be prepared in accordance with the relevant DCP and is to show all features, built structures including retaining walls, irrigation, mulch and natural features such as significant gardens, landscaping, trees, natural drainage lines and rock outcrops that occur within 3 metres of the site boundary. The landscape plan shall consider any stormwater, hydraulic or overland flow design issues where relevant.
- 11) The landscape plan shall include the provision for the replacement of all boundary fencing. A new 1.8m fence is to be erected along all side and rear boundaries of the subject allotment at full cost to the developer. The colour of the fence is to complement the development and the fence is to be constructed of lapped and capped timber paling, sheet metal or other suitable material unless the type of material is stipulated in any flood study prepared for the site. The selection of materials and colours of the fence is to be determined in consultation with the adjoining property owners. Fencing forward of the building line shall be no higher than 1m unless otherwise approved by Council.
- 12) Approval in accordance with Council's Tree Preservation Order (TPO) is granted to lop or remove only the trees identified to be lopped or removed on the approved plans. Separate approval shall be obtained to prune or remove trees on adjoining properties or other trees located on the site. Failure to comply with Council's TPO may result in a fine of up to \$100,000.
- 13) A soil erosion and sediment control plan must be prepared by a suitably qualified professional, in accordance with the Bankstown Demolition and Construction Guidelines and Council's Development Engineering Standards, and submitted to the certifying authority for approval prior to the issue of a construction certificate.
- 14) The Council Approved building plans, including demolition plans, must be submitted to Sydney Water for assessment. This will determine if the proposed structure(s) would affect any Sydney Water infrastructure or if there are additional requirements. Building plan approvals can be submitted online via Sydney Water Tap inTM.

Please refer to <u>www.sydneywater.com.au/tapin</u>

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

For Sydney Water's Guidelines for building over or next to assets, visit www.sydneywater.com.au 'Plumbing, building & developing' then 'Building Plan Approvals' or call 13000 TAPIN.

Prior to release of a construction certificate Sydney Water must issue either a Building Plan Assessment letter which states that your application is approved, or the appropriate plans must be stamped by a Water Servicing Coordinator.

- 15) A Construction Certificate shall not be issued until written proof that all bonds, fees and/or contributions as required by this consent have been paid to the applicable authority.
- 16) A long service levy payment which is 0.35% of the total cost of the work is to be paid to the Building and Construction Industry Long Service Payments Corporation.
- 17) Pursuant to section 80A(1) of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, and the Bankstown City Council Section 94A Development Contributions Plan 2009 (Section 94A Plan), a contribution of \$219,419.90 shall be paid to Council.

The amount to be paid is to be adjusted at the time of actual payment, in accordance with the provisions of the Section 94A plan. The contribution is to be paid before the issue of the construction certificate.

Note: The Section 94A Contributions Plans may be inspected at Council's Customer Service Centre, located at Upper Ground Floor, Civic Tower, 66-72 Rickard Road, Bankstown, between the hours of 8.30am-5.00pm Monday to Friday.

- 18) Finished surface levels of all internal works and at the street boundary, including driveways, landscaping and drainage structures, must be as shown on the approved plans. The levels at the street boundary must be consistent with the Street Boundary Alignment Levels issued by Council.
- 19) A Work Permit shall be applied for and obtained from Council for the following engineering works in front of the site, at the applicant's expense:
 - a) A heavy duty VFC at the property boundary.
 - b) Drainage connection to Council's system.
 - c) 1.2 metre wide / full width to match the existing concrete footway paving along the sites entire frontage to South Terrace and East Terrace.
 - d) Concrete kerb and gutter along the sites entire frontages to both South and East Terrace.
 - e) Pavement to be to Council's CBD Type 4 standard (Type 4 is 125mm depth fibre-reinforced concrete base with 40mm asphalt, Urbanstone 'Silver

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- Grey' 400 x 400 x min 50mm concrete paver banding and header treatment).
- f) Removal of all driveway surfaces, reinstatement of laybacks to kerb and gutter and reshaping of the footway, all associated with redundant VFCs.
- g) Repair of any damage to the public road including the footway occurring during development works.
- h) Reinstatement of the footway reserve and adjustment or relocation of existing public utility services to match the footway design levels as proposed on the approved Work Permit. Adjustment or relocation to any public utility services shall be carried out to the requirements of the public utility authority.
- i) 2 x Street trees in South Terrace to be 200litre *Tristaniopsis laurina* 'Luscious'
- j) 1 x Street trees in East Terrace to be 200litre Tristaniopsis laurina 'Luscious'
- k) Street trees to be planted to Bansktown City Council Standard Detail S-207 (or S-207A)
- Existing street tree Lophostemon confertus (Brush Box) to be provided with porous 'Stonesett' or 'Terrabond' gravel matrix surrounding the trunk base to an area of approx. 2m x 1.2m. Gravel to be 'Tan'/ Brown colour 5-7mm size.

Note: As a site survey and design is required to be prepared by Council in order to determine the necessary information, payment for the Work Permit should be made at least twenty one (21) days prior to the information being required and must be approved prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate.

- 20) Stormwater drainage from the development shall be designed so as to comply with Council's Development Engineering Standards and the requirements of the BASIX Certificate. A final detailed stormwater drainage design shall be prepared by a qualified Professional Civil Engineer in accordance with the above requirements and shall generally be in accordance with the concept stormwater plan with job No. 13045, issue B dated 29.06.2016 prepared by EZE HYDRAULIC ENGINEERS. The final plan shall be certified by the design engineer that it complies with Council's Development Engineering Standards, the BASIX Certificate and the relevant Australian Standards.
- 21) Where Council approved cut or fill exceeds 200mm and stable batter of 1 vertical to 3 horizontal maximum grade cannot be achieved, then a masonry or other proprietary material retaining wall, intended and suitable for that purpose, shall be constructed within the development site. Note, filling of the site needs specific approval from Council.

The retaining wall shall be located so that it will not impede or obstruct the natural flow of stormwater. Retaining walls exceeding 600mm in height

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

shall be designed by a qualified professional Civil/Structural Engineer. Plans and details prepared and signed by the Engineer are to be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate.

All works associated with the construction of the wall, including backfilling and drainage, is to be located wholly within the allotment boundaries.

- 22) An all-weather pavement shall be designed to withstand the anticipated wheel loads for all areas subjected to vehicular movements. Internal pavements specification prepared and certified by all qualified professional Civil Engineer to comply with the relevant Australian Standards, shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) for approval prior to the issue of a construction certificate.
- 23) The development is to be carried out in accordance with the commitments shown on the BASIX Certificate. The BASIX commitments approved with this Development Application are to be reflected in the Construction Certificate plans and specifications. Any proposed changes to the BASIX commitments after the Construction Certificate has been issued will require an updated BASIX Certificate and a new Construction Certificate.
- 24) Prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate for this development, the applicant must obtain approval from Council for a Site, Pedestrian and Traffic Management Plan. This Plan must address the measures that will be implemented for the protection of adjoining properties, pedestrian safety and traffic management and other requirements as specified below.

A PRIVATE CERTIFIER CANNOT APPROVE YOUR SITE, PEDESTRIAN & TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PLAN

This plan shall include details of the following:

- a) Proposed ingress and egress points for vehicles to and from the construction site:
- b) Proposed protection of pedestrians, adjacent to the constructions site;
- Proposed hoardings, scaffolding and/or fencing to secure the construction site;
- d) Proposed pedestrian management whilst vehicles are entering/exiting the construction site:
- e) Proposed measures to be implemented for the protection of all public roads and footway areas surrounding the construction site from building activities, crossings by heavy equipment, plant and materials delivery and static load from cranes, concrete pumps and the like;

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- f) Proposed method of loading and unloading excavation machines, building material, construction materials and waste containers during the construction period;
- g) Proposed traffic control measures such as advanced warning signs, barricades, warning lights, after hours contact numbers etc are required to be displayed and shall be in accordance with Council's and the NSW Roads and Maritime Services requirements and AS1742.3.
- h) Proposed method of support of any excavation, adjacent to adjoining buildings or the public road. The proposed method of support is to be certified by a Civil Engineer with National Professional Engineering Registration (NPER) in the construction of civil works.
- i) Proposed measures to be implemented in order to ensure that no soil/excavated material is transported on wheels or tracks of vehicles or plant and deposited on the public road.
- j) Proposed measures for protection of the environment including procedures to control environmental impacts of work e.g. sediment control, proper removal, disposal or recycling of waste materials, protection of vegetation and control/prevention of pollution i.e. water, air noise, land pollution.

The approved Site, Pedestrian and Traffic Management Plan is to be implemented prior to the commencement of any works on the construction site. The applicant will be required to pay for inspections by Council Officers in accordance with Council's adopted fees and charges.

In addition a RMS Approval / Road Occupancy Licence will be required for works on Regional or State Roads or within 100m of a traffic facility including roundabouts and traffic signals. Refer to Council's Development Engineering Standards for a list of Regional and State Roads.

As any works within, or use of, the footway or public road for construction purposes requires separate Council approval under Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993 and/or Section 68 of the Local Government Act 1993, Council requires that prior to any Construction Certificate for this development being issued, evidence of lodgement of an application for a Works Permit and or a Roadway/Footpath Building Occupation Permit shall be obtained where one or more of the following will occur, within, on or over the public footway or public road:

A PRIVATE CERTIFIER CANNOT ISSUE THESE PERMITS

WORKS REQUIRING A 'WORKS PERMIT'

- a) Dig up, disturb, or clear the surface of a public footway or public road,
- b) Remove or interfere with a structure or tree (or any other vegetation) on a public footway or public road,
- c) Connect a road (whether public or private) to a classified road,

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- d) Undertake footway, paving, vehicular crossing (driveway), landscaping or stormwater drainage works within a public footway or public road,
- e) Install utilities in, under or over a public road,
- f) Pump water into a public footway or public road from any land adjoining the public road,
- g) Erect a structure or carry out a work in, on or over a public road
- h) Require a work zone on the public road for the unloading and or loading of vehicles
- i) Pump concrete from within a public road,
- j) Stand a mobile crane within a public road
- k) Store waste and recycling containers, skips, bins and/or building materials on any part of the public road.
- I) The work is greater than \$25,000.
- m) Demolition is proposed.
- n) Subdivision is proposed.
- o) A Swimming pool is proposed.

Assessment of Works Permits (a to e) includes the preparation of footway design levels, vehicular crossing plans, dilapidation reports and issue of a Road Opening Permit.

All proposed works within the public road and footway shall be constructed under the supervision and to the satisfaction of Council. The applicant/developer shall arrange for necessary inspections by Council whilst the work is in progress.

For commercial or multi-unit residential developments within the designated CBD or an urban village area, footway design and construction and street tree supply, installation and tree hole detailing shall be as per the Council master plan for that area. Full width footways are to be supplied and installed at full cost to the developer to specification as supplied by Council. Layout plan of pavement to be submitted to Council for approval prior to the issue of the Works Permit.

All Council fees applicable, minimum restoration charges and inspection fees shall be paid prior to the assessment of the Work Permit in accordance with Council's adopted fees and charges. Note: Additional fees after approval will be charged where the Work Permit requires occupation of the Road or Footpath ie Hoardings, Work Zones etc.

In determining a Works Permit, Council can impose conditions and require inspections by Council Officers.

Forms can be obtained from Councils Customer Service counter located on the ground floor of Council's administration building at 66 - 72 Rickard Road, Bankstown or Council's website www.bankstown.nsw.gov.au

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

Part of any approval will require the person or company carrying out the work to carry public liability insurance to a minimum value of ten million dollars. Proof of the policy is to be provided to Council prior to commencing any work approved by the Work Permit including the Road Opening Permit and must remain valid for the duration of the works.

The commencement of any works on public land, including the footway or public road, may incur an on the spot fine of not less than \$1100 per day that work continues without a Works Permit and/or a Roadway/Footpath Building Occupation Permit.

All conditions attached to the permit shall be strictly complied with prior to occupation of the development. Works non-conforming to Council's specification (includes quality of workmanship to Council's satisfaction) shall be rectified by the Council at the applicant's expense.

- A Construction Certificate shall not be issued until design verification from a qualified designer has been received. The design verification is a statement in which the qualified designer verifies that the plans and specifications achieve or improve the design quality of the development of which Development Consent was granted, having regard to the design quality principles set out in Schedule 1 of SEPP No. 65.
- 27) The pump out drainage system for the access ramp and basement car parking area shall be provided in accordance with Council's Development Engineering Standards. Engineering details and specifications shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) for approval prior to the issue of any Construction Certificate.
- 28) Engineering details and manufacturers specifications for the pumps, switching system and sump pit shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) for approval prior to issue of any Construction Certificate.
- 29) For internal driveways with a gradient exceeding 10% (1 in 10), longitudinal profiles of all vehicular driveways and ramps shall be submitted for approval by the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA) prior to the issue of the Construction Certificate. The maximum grade of the driveway/ramp shall not exceed 25% and shall comply with AS 2890.1. The profile shall be drawn at a reduction ratio of 1 to 25 vertical and horizontal and shall be related to the datum used for the issue of the footway design levels and shall also show the road centre line levels, Council issued footway design levels and gutter levels. Council's Car Clearance Profile in Council's Development Engineering Standards, (Plan No. S 006) shall be used to design the profile.
- 30) The basement of the development is located adjacent to a Council Public Road Reserve. Separate approval and Work Permit is to be obtained from Council

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

for any temporary or permanent anchoring works under Council's Public Road.

- 31) The route for transportation to and from the development site of bulk and excavation materials shall generally be by the shortest possible route to the nearest "regional road", with every effort to avoid school zones on public roads. The applicant shall nominate the route for approval by Council prior to commencement of any work on the site. An Agreement to Council's satisfaction, signed by the applicant/owner specifying the approved route and acknowledging responsibility to pay Council for damages to public property adjacent to the site shall be lodged with Council prior to release of any Construction Certificate. All damage must be rectified upon completion of work.
- 32) Sight distance to approaching traffic shall be assessed using Fig 3.2 from AS 2890.1-2004. The area north and south of the entry/exit driveway shall be kept clear.
- A bicycle parking area as shown on the plans must comply with Fig. B5(c) from AS 2890.3-2015. All construction certificate plans must be consistent with this requirement.
- 34) The applicant shall apply to the Bankstown Traffic Committee for the installation of a Works Zone at the site's frontage to either or both East Terrace and South Terrace a minimum of 8 weeks in before construction is scheduled to begin.
- 35) If required by Sydney Trains, prior to the commencement of works and prior to the issue of the Occupation Certificate, a joint inspection of the rail infrastructure and property in the vicinity of the project is to be carried out by representatives from Sydney Trains and the Applicant. These dilapidation surveys will establish the extent of any existing damage and enable any deterioration during construction to be observed. The submission of a detailed dilapidation report will be required unless otherwise notified by Sydney Trains.
- 36) Prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate the Applicant is to engage an Electrolysis Expert to prepare a report on the Electrolysis Risk to the development from stray currents. The Applicant must incorporate in the development all the measures recommended in the report to control that risk. A copy of the report is to be provided to the Principal Certifying Authority with the application for a Construction Certificate.
- 37) The design, installation and use of lights, signs and reflective materials, whether permanent or temporary, which are (or from which reflected light

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

might be) visible from the rail corridor must limit glare and reflectivity to the satisfaction of Sydney Trains.

The Principal Certifying Authority is not to issue the Construction Certificate until written confirmation has been received from Sydney Trains confirming that this condition has been satisfied.

- 38) If required by Sydney Trains, prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate a Risk Assessment/Management Plan and detailed Safe Work Method Statements (SWMS) for the proposed works are to be submitted to Sydney Trains for review and comment on the impacts on rail corridor. The Principal Certifying Authority is not to issue the Construction Certificate until written confirmation has been received from Sydney Trains confirming that this condition has been satisfied.
- 39) Prior to the issuing of a Construction Certificate the Applicant is to submit to Sydney Trains a plan showing all craneage and other aerial operations for the development and must comply with all Sydney Trains requirements. The Principal Certifying Authority is not to issue the Construction Certificate until written confirmation has been received from the Sydney Trains confirming that this condition has been satisfied.
- 40) If required by Sydney Trains, a track monitoring plan (including instrumentation and the monitoring regime during excavation and construction phases) is to be submitted to Sydney Trains for review and endorsement prior to the issuing of a Construction Certificate. The Principal Certifying Authority is not to issue a Construction Certificate until written confirmation has been received from Sydney Trains advising of the need to undertake the track monitoring plan, and if required, that it has been endorsed.
- 41) Permission is granted for the demolition of all structures currently existing on the property, subject to strict compliance with the following:
 - a) The developer is to notify adjoining residents seven (7) working days prior to demolition. Such notification is to be clearly written on A4 size paper giving the date demolition will commence and be placed in the letterbox of every premises (including every residential flat or unit, if any) either side, immediately at the rear of, and directly opposite the demolition site.
 - b) Written notice is to be given to Canterbury-Bankstown Council for inspection prior to demolition. Such written notice is to include the date when demolition will commence and details of the name, address, business hours and contact telephone number and licence number of

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

the demolisher. The following building inspections shall be undertaken by Canterbury-Bankstown Council:

- (i) A precommencement inspection shall be carried out by Council when all the site works required as part of this consent are installed on the site and prior to demolition commencing.
- (ii) A final inspection shall be carried out by Council when the demolition works have been completed to ensure that the site is left in a satisfactory manner, in accordance with the conditions of this consent.
- NOTE: Payment of an inspection fee at Council's current rate will be required prior to each inspection. Council requires 24 hours notice to carry out inspections. Arrangements for inspections can be made by phoning 9707 9410, 9707 9412 or 9707 9635.
- c) Prior to demolition, the applicant must erect a sign at the front of the property with the demolisher's name, license number, contact phone number and site address.
- d) Prior to demolition, the applicant must erect a 2.4m high temporary fence or hoarding between the work site and any public place. Access to the site shall be restricted to Authorised Persons Only and the site shall be secured against unauthorised entry when the building work is not in progress or the site is otherwise unoccupied. Where demolition is to occur within 3m of a public place a Work Permit application for the construction of a Class A or Class B hoarding shall be submitted to Council for approval.
- e) The demolition plans must be submitted to the appropriate Sydney Water Office to determine whether the development will affect Sydney Water's sewer and water mains, stormwater drains and/or easements. If the development complies with Sydney Water's requirements, the demolition plans will be stamped indicating that no further requirements are necessary.
- f) Demolition is to be carried out in accordance with the appropriate provisions of Australian Standard AS2601-2001.
- g) The hours of demolition work shall be limited to between 7.00am and 6.00pm on weekdays, 7.00am and 1.00pm on Saturdays and no work shall be carried out on Sundays and public holidays, and weekends (Saturdays and Sundays) adjacent to public holidays.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- h) Where materials containing asbestos cement are to be removed, demolition is to be carried out by licensed contractors who have current Workcover Accreditation in asbestos removal.
- i) Hazardous or intractable wastes arising from the demolition process shall be removed and disposed of in accordance with the requirements of WorkCover NSW and the NSW EPA 'Environmental Guidelines: Assessment, Classification and Management of Liquid and Non-Liquid Wastes 2004'.
- Demolition procedures shall maximise the reuse and recycling of demolished materials in order to reduce the environmental impacts of waste disposal.
- k) During demolition, the public footway and public road shall be clear at all times and shall not be obstructed by any demolished material or vehicles. The public road and footway shall be swept (NOT hosed) clean of any material, including clay, soil and sand. (NOTE: If required, Council will clean the public road/footway at the applicant's expense). On the spot fines may be levied by Council against the demolisher and or owner for failure to comply with this condition.
- I) All vehicles leaving the site with demolition materials shall have their loads covered and vehicles shall not track soil and other material onto the public roads and footways and the footway shall be suitably protected against damage when plant and vehicles access the site. All loading of vehicles with demolished materials shall occur on site.
- m) The burning of any demolished material on site is not permitted and offenders will be prosecuted.
- n) Care shall be taken during demolition to ensure that existing services on the site (ie. sewer, electricity, gas, phone) are not damaged. Any damage caused to existing services shall be repaired by the relevant authority at the applicant's expense.
- Suitable erosion and sediment control measures shall be erected prior to the commencement of demolition works and shall be maintained at all times.
- p) Prior to the demolition of any building constructed before 1970, a Work Plan shall be prepared and submitted to Council in accordance with Australian Standard AS2601-2001 by a person with suitable expertise and experience. The Work Plan shall outline the identification of any hazardous materials, including surfaces coated with lead paint, method

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

of demolition, the precautions to be employed to minimise any dust nuisance and the disposal methods for hazardous materials.

- 42) All remediation works carried out on site shall be in accordance with the recommendations outlined in the conceptual Remediation Action Plan Project ID: E28674Krpt3-RAP dated 12 July 2016 submitted to Council. Council must be informed in writing of any variation to the proposed remediation works.
- 43) If unexpected soil contaminants are unearthed during excavation and/or construction works, which has the potential to alter previous conclusions made regarding potential site contamination; all work is to cease and Council notified immediately.

The contaminated land situation is to then be evaluated by a suitably qualified and experienced environmental consultant and an appropriate response determined by the applicant and/or owner, which is agreed to by Council, prior to the recommencement of works.

- 44) All fill removed from the property shall be classified in accordance with the NSW EPA Waste Classification Guidelines 2009 and be disposed of to an appropriate EPA licensed waste facility.
- 45) Upon completion of remediation works and prior to the issue of a Construction Certificate, a Validation Report must be provided and be prepared by an appropriately qualified and experienced environmental consultant. This report will need to include a Clearance Certificate prepared by an Occupational Hygienist and must comply with the NSW EPA 'Guidelines for Consultants Reporting on Contaminated Sites 2000.' This report must outline that the required remediation work has been completed and that the site is suitable for the proposed land use. This may also include an Environmental Management Plan (EMP) for any remained contamination onsite after remediation, which will require completion following the site remediation works.
- Any fill imported on to the site shall be classified/validated to ensure that it is suitable for the proposed land use. This validation must be undertaken by a suitably qualified and experienced environmental consultant in accordance with relevant EPA Guidelines. Fill imported on to the site shall also be compatible with the existing soil characteristic for site drainage purposes.
- 47) All site remediation works shall comply with the work health and safety requirements of the NSW WorkCover Authority

CONDITIONS TO BE SATISFIED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- 48) The building / subdivision work in accordance with the development consent must not be commenced until:
 - a. a construction certificate for the building / subdivision work has been issued by the council or an accredited certifier, and
 - b. the person having benefit of the development consent has:
 - i. appointed a principal certifying authority for the building / subdivision work, and
 - ii. notified the principal certifying authority that the person will carry out the building work as an owner-builder, if that is the case, and
 - c. the person having the benefit of the development consent, if not carrying out the building work as an owner-builder, has:
 - appointed a principal contractor for the building work who must be the holder of a contractor licence if any residential building work is involved, and
 - ii. notified the principal certifying authority of any such appointment, and
 - iii. unless the person is the principal contractor, notified the principal contractor of any critical stage inspections and other inspections that are to be carried out in respect of the building work, and
 - d. the person having the benefit of the development consent has given at least 2 days' notice to the council of the person's intention to commence the building / subdivision work.
- 49) Existing trees within the vicinity of the construction works or paths of travel for construction vehicles accessing the development that are to be retained shall be protected with temporary fencing of a style non injurious to tree roots, placed 2m from the trunk base of the existing tree to prevent damage during construction, and retained in accordance with Council's Tree Preservation Order. There is to be no stockpiling of materials within the 2m fenced zone.
- 50) Suitable erosion and sediment control measures shall be erected in accordance with the plans accompanying the Construction Certificate prior to the commencement of construction works and shall be maintained at all times.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- 51) Council warning sign for Soil and Water Management must be displayed on the most prominent point of the site, visible to both the street and site works. The sign must be displayed throughout the construction period.
- 52) Prior to the commencement of work, the applicant must provide a temporary on-site toilet if access to existing toilets on site is not adequate.
- 53) A section 73 compliance certificate under the Sydney Water Act 1994 must be obtained from Sydney Water Corporation. Make early application for the certificate, as there may be water and sewer pipes to be built and this can take some time. This can also impact on other services and building, driveway or landscape design.

Application must be made through an authorised Water Servicing Coordinator. For help either visit www.sydneywater.com.au > Building and Developing > Developing your Land > Water Servicing Coordinator or telephone 13 20 92.

Prior to the commencement of work, a fence must be erected around the area of the works, except where an existing 1.8m high boundary fence is in good condition and is capable of securing the area. Any new fencing shall be temporary (such as cyclone wire) and at least 1.8m high. All fencing is to be maintained for the duration of construction to ensure that the work area is secured.

Where the work is located within 3.6m of a public place then a Type A or Type B hoarding must be constructed appropriate to the works proposed. An application for a Work Permit for such hoarding must be submitted to Council for approval prior to the commencement of work.

- 55) A sign shall be displayed on the site indicating the name of the person responsible for the site and a telephone number of which that person can be contacted during and outside normal working hours or when the site is unattended.
- 56) In the case of residential building work for which the Home Building Act 1989 requires there to be a contract of insurance in force in accordance with Part 6 of the Act, that such a contract of insurance is in force before any building work authorised to be carried out by the consent commences.
- 57) Residential building work within the meaning of the Home Building Act 1989 must not be carried out unless the principal certifying authority for the development to which the work relates (not being the council) has given the council written notice of the following information:
 - in the case of work for which a principal certifying is required to be appointed:

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- i. the name and licence number of the principal contractor, and
- ii. the name of the insurer by which the work is insured under Part 6 of the Act.
- b. in the case of work to be done by an owner-builder:
 - i. the name of the owner-builder, and
 - ii. If the owner-builder is required to hold an owner-builder permit under that Act, the number of the owner-builder permit.

If arrangements for doing the residential building work are changed while the work is in progress so that the information notified becomes out of date, further work must not be carried out unless the principal certifying authority for the development to which the work relates (not being the council) has given the council written notice of the updated information.

- A sign must be erected in a prominent position on any site on which building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out:
 - a. showing the name, address and telephone number of the principal certifying authority for the work, and
 - b. showing the name of the principal contractor (if any) for any building work and a telephone number on which that person may be contacted outside working hours, and
 - c. stating that unauthorised entry to the work site is prohibited.

Any such sign is to be maintained while the building work, subdivision work or demolition work is being carried out, but must be removed when the work has been completed.

CONDITIONS TO BE SATISFIED DURING CONSTRUCTION

- 59) The hours of site works shall be limited to between 7.00am and 6.00pm on weekdays and 7.00am and 1.00pm on Saturdays. No work shall be carried out on Sundays and public holidays, and weekends (Saturdays and Sundays) adjacent to public holidays.
- 60) The building work must be carried out in accordance with the requirements of the Building Code of Australia.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- 61) Prior to the ground floor slab being poured, an identification report by a Registered Surveyor must be submitted to the principal certifying authority verifying that the proposed buildings finished ground floor level and siting to the property boundaries conforms to the approved plans.
- 62) All Civil and Hydraulic engineering works on site must be carried out in accordance with Council's Development Engineering Standards. All Civil and Hydraulic engineering works associated with Council's assets and infrastructure must be carried out in accordance with Council's Work Permit requirements and to Council's satisfaction.
- 63) All excavations and backfilling must be executed safely and in accordance with the relevant Australian Standards.
- 64) If soil conditions require it, retaining walls or other approved methods of preventing movement of the soil must be provided, and adequate provisions must be made for drainage. Separate approval may be required for retaining walls should they be required.
- 65) If the development involves an excavation that extends below the level of the base of the footings of a building on adjoining land, the person having the benefit of the development consent must, at the person's own expense:
 - a. protect and support the adjoining premises from possible damage from the excavation, and
 - b. where necessary, underpin the adjoining premises to prevent any such damage.
- All boundary fencing behind the building line shall be replaced by a 1.8m high lapped and capped timber or sheet metal fence, or as stipulated in a flood study prepared for the site, or as determined in consultation with the adjoining property owners at the developer's expense. Fencing forward of the building line shall be no higher than 1m unless otherwise approved by Council.
- 67) The stormwater drainage system shall be constructed in accordance with Council's Development Engineering Standards and the engineering plans and details approved by the Principal Certifying Authority (PCA).
- Prior to the commencement of work, the builder shall prepare a photographic record of the road reserve which clearly shows its condition prior to works occurring on site. For the entirety of demolition, subdivision or construction works, there shall be no stockpiling of building spoil, materials, or storage of equipment on the public road, including the footway and the road reserve shall be maintained in a safe condition at all times. No work shall be carried

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

out on the public road, including the footway, unless a Work Permit authorised by Council has been obtained.

69) If unexpected soil contaminants are unearthed during excavation and/or construction works, which has the potential to alter previous conclusions made regarding potential site contamination; all work is to cease and Council notified immediately.

The contaminated land situation is to then be evaluated by a suitably qualified and experienced environmental consultant and an appropriate response determined by the applicant and/or owner, which is agreed to by Council, prior to the recommencement of works.

70) Any fill imported on to the site shall be classified/validated to ensure that it is suitable for the proposed land use. This validation must be undertaken by a suitably qualified and experienced environmental consultant in accordance with relevant EPA Guidelines. Fill imported on to the site shall also be compatible with the existing soil characteristic for site drainage purposes.

CONDITIONS TO BE SATISFIED PRIOR TO OCCUPATION

- 71) Any unrestricted frontage to the building shall have timed parking for the commercial component installed at the applicant's cost. The applicant must apply to the Bankstown Traffic Committee prior to the issuing of an Occupation certificate.
- 72) The developer must apply to Traffic Committee for 'No Parking Waste Collection Nights Only' signs in East Terrace. The applicant must apply to the Bankstown Traffic Committee prior to the issuing of an Occupation certificate.
- 73) The occupation or use of the building must not be commenced unless an occupation certificate has been issued for the building.
- 74) A final Occupation Certificate shall not be issued until all conditions relating to demolition, construction and site works of this development consent are satisfied and Council has issued a Work Permit Compliance Certificate.
- 75) Consolidation of the existing allotments must be registered by the office of Land and Property Information prior to the issue of an occupation certificate.
- 76) 129 off street car parking spaces shall be provided/maintained for the use of visitor and employees to the premises in accordance with the submitted plans. Such spaces are to be sealed and line marked and maintained.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- 77) 129 off street car spaces being provided in accordance with the submitted plans. This shall comprise of a minimum:
 - 91 residential spaces
 - 18 residential visitor spaces
 - 15 business / commercial spaces

Car parking spaces are to be provided for people with mobility impairment in accordance with AS 2890.1. All car parking spaces shall be allocated and marked according to these requirements.

- 78) Landscaping is to be installed in accordance with the approved landscape plan. All works and methods nominated and materials and plants specified on the approved landscape plan are to be completed prior to the issue of an occupation certificate. The landscaping shall be maintained for the life of the development. The landscaping must include 2 x Street trees in South Terrace to be 200 litre *Tristaniopsis laurina* 'Luscious' and 1 x Street trees in East Terrace to be 200 litre *Tristaniopsis laurina* 'Luscious'. All street trees to be planted to Bankstown City Council Standard Detail S-207 (or S-207A)
- 79) A suitably qualified Professional Civil Engineer shall certify that the driveways, parking bays, and service areas have been constructed in accordance with the approved plans and specifications. Such Certification shall be submitted prior to the issue of the Occupation Certificate or occupation of the site.
- 80) Lighting must be provided to the entries of the dwellings, driveways and parking areas to promote a high level of safety and security at night and during periods of low light. Lighting provided should be hooded, shielded or directed away from neighbouring dwellings to minimise glare and associated nuisances to residents.
- 81) Prior to the issue of any Occupation Certificate, verification from a qualified acoustic engineer shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority to verify that the development complies with the requirements of Condition 7 of this development consent, and that any measures required to be installed to comply with the requirements of that condition, have been installed.
- 82) Prior to the issue of any Occupation Certificate a design verification from a qualified designer shall be submitted to the Principal Certifying Authority. The design verification is a statement in which the qualified designer verifies that the development has been constructed as shown in the plans and specifications in respect of which the Construction Certificate was issued, having regard to the design quality principles set out in Schedule 1 of SEPP No. 65.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

83) A registered surveyor shall prepare a Work As Executed Plan, and a suitably qualified Hydraulic Engineer shall provide certification of the constructed onsite stormwater detention system.

The Work As Executed information shall be shown in red on a copy of the approved stormwater plan and shall include all information specified in Council's Development Engineering Standards. The Work As Executed plan shall be submitted to the Hydraulic Engineer prior to certification of the on-site stormwater detention system.

The engineer's certification of the on-site stormwater detention system should be carried out similar to Council's standard form "On-Site Stormwater Detention System - Certificate of Compliance", contained in Council's Development Engineering Standards.

A copy of the Work As Executed Plan and Hydraulic Engineer's Certification shall be submitted to Council for information prior to issue of the final occupation certificate.

84) The developer shall register, on the title of the subject property, a Restriction on the Use of Land and Positive Covenant, in accordance with the standard terms for "Registration of OSD on title", as outlined in Council's Development Engineering Standards and in accordance with the appropriate provisions of the Conveyancing Act.

Note: The location of the "On-Site Stormwater Detention System" shall be shown on the plan of subdivision where subdivision is proposed. Where subdivision is not proposed the location of the "On-Site Stormwater Detention System" shall be included on an A4 size site plan attached to the Section 88E Instrument and registered on the title prior to the issue of the final occupation certificate.

The developer shall submit to Council evidence of the final registration of the Restriction and Positive Covenant on the title of the property.

- A Copy of the Work Permit Compliance Certificate shall be submitted to the PCA Prior to the issue of the Occupation Certificate.
- 86) The Section 73 compliance certificate under the Sydney Water Act 1994 must be submitted to the principal certifying authority before occupation of the development / release of the plan of subdivision.

USE OF THE SITE

87) Car parking spaces for 129 vehicles shall be provided in marked spaces in the manner generally shown on the approved site plan. The car parking spaces, driveways and manoeuvring areas are to be used for employees and visitors

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

vehicles only and not for the storage of new or used materials, finished goods or commercial vehicles.

- 88) All storage areas are to be clearly identifiable and secured. Any storage areas in alcoves need to be well lit and mirrors to be erected to assist with unclear sightlines.
- 89) CCTV system is to be installed for the commercial tenancy with the ability to store footage for a minimum of 21 days.
- 90) Any lighting on the site shall be designed so as not to cause nuisance to other residences in the area or to motorists on nearby public roads and to ensure no adverse impact on the amenity of the surrounding area by light overspill. All lighting shall comply with the Interim Australian Standard AS 4282-1997 The Control of the Obtrusive Effects of Outdoor Lighting.
- 91) The use of the premises shall not contravene the *Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997.* The operation of the premise shall be carried out in accordance with the requirement of the NSW EPA, where relevant.
- 92) No external signage is approved under this development consent. External signage details must be submitted to Council for approval prior to installation.
- 93) Commercial Garbage Storage Room should be signposted 'Commercial Waste & Recycling' with access restricted to commercial tenants only.
- 94) The applicant shall enter into a commercial contract for the collection of wastes and recycling. A copy of the commercial waste and recycling contract shall be lodged with Council and invoices should be available for inspection at any time.
- 95) Garbage Storage Room The storage area must fit 15 x 1100L bulk bins sideby-side with equal and convenient access to all bins by residents. The door and pathway to the collection area be at least 2500mm in width
- 96) Existing street tree *Lophostemon confertus* (Brush Box) to be provided with porous "Stonesett" or Terrabond' gravel matrix surrounding the trunk base to an area of approximately 2m x 1.2m. Gravel to be 'Tan'/Brown colour 5-7mm size.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

ITEM 5.4 96-98 COLUMBINE AVENUE, PUNCHBOWL

DEMOLITION OF EXISTING STRUCTURES AND CONSOLIDATION OF EXISTING LOTS TO CREATE ONE NEW ALLOTMENT. CONSTRUCTION OF A MIXED COMMERCIAL/RESIDENTIAL FLAT BUILDING COMPRISING OF TWO RETAIL SHOPS, NINE (9) RESIDENTIAL UNITS AND BASEMENT CARPARKING

THIS MATTER WAS DISCUSSED PREVIOUSLY. SEE RESOLUTION NO. 198 ON PAGE 2 OF THESE MINUTES.

ITEM 5.5 93-97 BONDS ROAD, RIVERWOOD: PLANNING PROPOSAL

(202) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That the planning proposal to rezone the land at 93-97 Bonds Road Riverwood from IN1 General Industrial to B5 Business Development not be supported for the reasons specified in this report and in Attachments A, B, C, D, E and F.

ITEM 5.6 CLAUSE 4.4A PLANNING PROPOSAL EXHIBITION SUMMARY

(203) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That -

- 1. Council adopt the revised planning proposal as shown in Attachment A.
- Council forward the revised planning proposal to the Department of Planning
 Environment to draft and finalise the LEP Amendment.

ITEM 5.7 DRAFT BANKSTOWN DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PLAN 2015 (AMENDMENT NO. 6).

(204) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

- 1. Council exhibit the Draft Bankstown Development Control Plan 2015 (Amendment No. 6) as shown in Attachments A and B.
- 2. Council exhibit the Waste Management Guide for New Developments and template Waste Management Plan as shown in Attachment C and D.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

3. A further report be submitted to Council at the conclusion of the exhibition period.

ITEM 5.8 APPOINTMENT OF THE CANTERBURY BANKSTOWN IHAP AND IHAP REVIEW PANEL

(205) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That -

- Council confirm its decision to establish the Canterbury Bankstown Independent Hearing and Assessment Panel (IHAP) to consider and determine development applications referred to it by the General Manager.
- 2. In accordance with Section 377 of the *Local Government Act 1993*, Council establish the Canterbury Bankstown Independent Hearing and Assessment Review Panel (IHARP) to consider and determine reviews of development application decisions referred to it by the General Manager.
- 3. Council adopt the amended Canterbury Bankstown Independent Hearing and Assessment Panel Charter as attached to this Report
- 4. Council endorse the appointment of Panel Members and their remuneration as identified in this Report.
- 5. Required funding to administer the Panels be accordingly reflected in Council's 2016/17 budget.
- 6 Subject to item 1 and 2 above the Canterbury IHAP cease to operate and now be dissolved.

SECTION 6: REPORT OF THE GENERAL MANAGER

ITEM 6.1 CODE OF CONDUCT

(206) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That -

1. Council adopt the concept of the Code of Conduct Framework as outlined in the report.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- Council adopt the Canterbury-Bankstown Code of Conduct and the Procedures for the Administration of the Model Code as attached to this report.
- 3. Council adopt the Panel of Conduct Reviewers as appointed by the Southern Sydney Regional Organisation of Councils.
- 4. Further reports be prepared to consider the subsequent policies that support the Code of Conduct Framework, as required.

ITEM 6.2 AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

(207) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That -

- 1. The contents of this report be noted.
- 2. Council adopts both the Audit and Risk Committee Charter and Internal Audit Charter.
- 3. Council approves the suggested remuneration for both the Chairperson and independent members as outlined in the report.

ITEM 6.3 COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEES

(208) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

- 1. Council adopt the draft Community Advisory Committees Guidelines, Rules and Charters, as attached.
- 2. Council establish the Community Advisory Committees, as outlined in the report.
- Expressions of Interest be sought from community representatives of the former Bankstown and Canterbury Community Advisory Committees for membership of the new Canterbury Bankstown Advisory Committees, as outlined in the report.
- 4. The Administrator appoint community representatives for each Committee.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

ITEM 6.4 REQUESTS FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND DONATIONS

(209) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That -

- 1. A donation of \$262.00 (equivalent to the park hire fee) for the use of two Softball Diamonds at Kelso North by the Mental Health Sports Network (MHSN) on Friday 18 November, 2016.
- A donation of \$1,280.00 be made to Pink October Breast Cancer Awareness Campaign, Canterbury Region on behalf of the NSW Cancer Institute in support of the fundraising dinner being held at the Lantern Club, Roselands on Thursday, 20 October, 2016.
- A donation of \$200 be made to the Seventh Australia Division AIF Association who have requested that costs associated with the use, erection and dismantling of a marquee for the annual reunion held at Remembrance Driveway, Bass Hill be waived.

PROPOSED PUBLIC LAND RECLASSIFICATION OF SEVERAL COUNCIL-OWNED DRAINAGE RESERVES - AMENDMENT TO CANTERBURY LOCAL ENVIRONMENTAL PLAN 2012

(210) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

- In accordance with the relevant provisions of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act, 1979 and Local Government Act, 1993, Council proceed to carry out the required public consultation process to reclassify the following properties from community to operational land;
 - 13A Denman Avenue, Wiley Park, Lot 106 in Deposited Plan 6480
 - 71A Denman Avenue, Wiley Park, Lot 107 in Deposited Plan 6480
 - 61A Beauchamp Street, Wiley Park, Lot 35 in Deposited Plan 10980
 - 66A Beauchamp Street, Wiley Park, Lot 36 in Deposited Plan 10980
 - 1a Calbina Road, Earlwood, Lot 110 in Deposited Plan 10987
 - 13a Ryrie Road, Earlwood, Lot 111 in Deposited Plan 10987
 - 44a Cornelia Street, Wiley Park, Lot 170 in Deposited Plan 7298
- 2. A further report be provided to Council at the conclusion of the public consultation process.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

ITEM 6.6 DRAFT VOLUNTARY PLANNING AGREEMENT POLICY

(211) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That -

- 1. The Draft Voluntary Planning Agreement Policy at Attachment A be placed on public exhibition for a period of 28 days.
- 2. The matter be reported back to Council following the public exhibition.

ITEM 6.7 CODE OF MEETING PRACTICE - AMENDMENT TO 2016 SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS AND 2017 SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS

(212) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That -

- 1. The 2016 Schedule of Council Meetings be amended and the Ordinary Meeting for 13 December 2016 be rescheduled to 6 December 2016.
- 2. The 2017 Schedule of Council Meetings be adopted.

ITEM 6.8 LICENCE AGREEMENT WITH ROADS AND MARITIME SERVICES FOR CCTV CAMERAS AT CARINYA RD, PICNIC POINT

(213) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

- 1. Council agree in principle to Roads and Maritime Services installing CCTV Cameras at Picnic Point Reserve, as detailed in this Report.
- 2. Council give public notice of and exhibit the proposal to enter into the Licence Agreement, as required under the Local Government Act 1993.
- Subject to Council receiving no submissions, Council enter into a Licence Agreement with Roads and Maritime Services to install CCTV cameras as detailed in the report.
- 4. The Administrator and General Manager be delegated authority to sign all documents in accordance with the resolutions above under the common seal of Council, as required.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

ITEM 6.9 CASH AND INVESTMENT REPORT AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2016

(214) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That -

- 1. The Cash and Investments Report as at 30 September 2016 be received and noted.
- 2. The Certification by the Responsible Accounting Officer incorporated in this report, be adopted.

SECTION 7: COMMITTEE REPORTS

ITEM 7.1 MINUTES OF THE CANTERBURY TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 10 OCTOBER 2016 AND BANKSTOWN TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 11

OCTOBER 2016

(215) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That the recommendations contained in the minutes of the Canterbury Traffic Committee meeting held on 10 October 2016 and the Bankstown Traffic Committee held on 11 October 2016, be adopted.

ITEM 7.2 MINUTES OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 11 OCTOBER 2016

(216) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That the recommendations contained in the minutes of the Audit and Risk meeting held on 11 October 2016, be adopted.

SECTION 8: NOTICE OF MOTIONS & QUESTIONS WITH NOTICE

Nil

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

SECTION 9: MATTERS FOR INFORMATION

ITEM 9.1 IPART REVIEW OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT RATING SYSTEM

(217) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That the information be noted.

ITEM 9.2 AUSGRID VEGETATION MANAGEMENT ENGAGEMENT PROGRAM

(218) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That the information be noted.

ITEM 9.3 PECUNIARY INTEREST RETURNS 2015/16

(219) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That the tabling of the Pecuniary Interest Returns for 2015/16 be noted.

ITEM 9.4 DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS DETERMINED BY COUNCIL OFFICERS UNDER

DELEGATION

(220) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That the contents of the report be noted.

SECTION 10: QUESTIONS FOR NEXT MEETING

Nil

SECTION 11: CONFIDENTIAL SESSION

(221) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That, in accordance with Section 10A(2) of the Local Government Act, 1993, the Public and the Press be excluded from the meeting to enable Council to determine

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

Items 11.1, 11.2, 11.3, 11.4, 11.5, 11.6, 11.7 in confidential session for the reasons indicated:

Item 11.1 T38-2016 - Tender for the Construction of Gough Whitlam Park Accessible Toilet Upgrade

This report is considered to be confidential in accordance with Section 10A(2)(d)(i) of the Local Government Act, 1993, as it relates to commercial information of a confidential nature that would, if disclosed, prejudice the commercial position of the person who supplied it.

Item 11.2 T11-17 The River Road Rehabilitation Stage II

This report is considered to be confidential in accordance with Section 10A(2)(d)(i) of the Local Government Act, 1993, as it relates to commercial information of a confidential nature that would, if disclosed, prejudice the commercial position of the person who supplied it.

Item 11.3 T14-17 Construction of Roundabouts and Associated Works at Norman Street, Condell Park and Noble Avenue, Greenacre

This report is considered to be confidential in accordance with Section 10A(2)(d)(i) of the Local Government Act, 1993, as it relates to commercial information of a confidential nature that would, if disclosed, prejudice the commercial position of the person who supplied it.

Item 11.4 T21-17 Construction of a Roundabout and Associated Works at Various locations in Panania and Padstow

This report is considered to be confidential in accordance with Section 10A(2)(d)(i) of the Local Government Act, 1993, as it relates to commercial information of a confidential nature that would, if disclosed, prejudice the commercial position of the person who supplied it.

Item 11.5 Morris lemma Indoor Sports Centre- Management Options

This report is considered to be confidential in accordance with Section 10A(2)(c) of the Local Government Act, 1993, as it relates to information that would, if disclosed, confer a commercial advantage on a person with whom the Council is conducting (or proposes to conduct) business.

Item 11.6 Property Matter - Coleman Avenue, Bankstown

This report is considered to be confidential in accordance with Section 10A(2)(c) of the Local Government Act, 1993, as it relates

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

to information that would, if disclosed, confer a commercial advantage on a person with whom the Council is conducting (or proposes to conduct) business.

Item 11.7 Sale of Portion of 24A Third Street, Ashbury

This report is considered to be confidential in accordance with Section 10A(2)(c) of the Local Government Act, 1993, as it relates to information that would, if disclosed, confer a commercial advantage on a person with whom the Council is conducting (or proposes to conduct) business.

COUNCIL RESOLVED INTO CONFIDENTIAL SESSION AT 6.26 PM AND REVERTED BACK TO OPEN COUNCIL AT 6.29 PM.

T38-2016 - TENDER FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF GOUGH WHITLAM PARK ACCESSIBLE TOILET UPGRADE

(222) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That -

- Council accepts the tender received from Michael Camporeale Builders for an amount of \$156,303.99 (excluding GST) for the construction of Gough Whitlam Accessible Toilet Upgrade.
- 2. The General Manager be authorised to enter into a contract and sign all documentation in accordance with Council's resolution, as required.
- 3. Council notifies the unsuccessful tenderers in writing and thank them for tendering.

ITEM 11.2 T11-17 THE RIVER ROAD REHABILITATION STAGE II

(223) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That -

 Council accepts the tender received from Starcon Group Pty Ltd for an amount of \$253,754.00 (excluding GST) for the provision of roadworks associated with the resurfacing of The River Road between Macarthur Avenue and Uranus Road, Revesby.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

- 2. The General Manager be authorised to enter into a contract and sign all documentation in accordance with Council's resolution, as required.
- 3. Council notifies the unsuccessful tenderers in writing and thank them for tendering.

ITEM 11.3 T14-17 CONSTRUCTION OF ROUNDABOUTS AND ASSOCIATED WORKS AT NORMAN STREET, CONDELL PARK AND NOBLE AVENUE, GREENACRE

(224) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That -

- 1. Council accepts the tender received from Road link Asphalt Pty Ltd for an amount of \$433,896.00 (excluding GST) for T14-17.
- 2. The General Manager be authorised to enter into a contract and sign all documentation in accordance with Council's resolution, as required.
- 3. Council notifies the unsuccessful tenderers in writing and thank them for tendering.

ITEM 11.4 T21-17 CONSTRUCTION OF A ROUNDABOUT AND ASSOCIATED WORKS AT VARIOUS LOCATIONS IN PANANIA AND PADSTOW

(225) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

- Council accepts the tender received from KK Civil Engineering Pty Ltd for an amount of \$334,253.50 (excluding GST) for the Black Spot Improvements Program (Weston St Panania to Alma Rd Padstow).
- 2. The General Manager be authorised to enter into a contract and sign all documentation in accordance with Council's resolution, as required.
- 3. Council notifies the unsuccessful tenderers in writing and thank them for tendering.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

ITEM 11.5 MORRIS IEMMA INDOOR SPORTS CENTRE- MANAGEMENT OPTIONS

(226) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That -

- 1. Council adopt the Combination Model for the future management of the Morris lemma Indoor Sports Stadium as outlined in this report.
- 2. Subject to item 1, Council conduct an open tender process to lease the gym, group fitness and health suites to an external operator for a period of five (5) years as outlined in the report.
- Council continue to utilise the YMCA to manage the Morris lemma Indoor Sports Centre for a further period of six months until June 2017 as outlined in the report.

ITEM 11.6 PROPERTY MATTER - COLEMAN AVENUE, BANKSTOWN

(227) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That -

- 1. Council agrees in principle to the sale of road reserve adjacent to 60 Brancourt Ave, Bankstown, as outlined in the report.
- 2. Council carry out the required statutory road closure process in accordance with the Roads Act, 1993.
- 3. Council resolves to dedicate the drainage reserve section that traverses over Coleman Avenue as a public road, as outlined in the report.
- 4. The Administrator and General Manager be delegated authority to carry out all necessary functions and sign all documentation, under the common seal of council, as required.

ITEM 11.7 SALE OF PORTION OF 24A THIRD STREET, ASHBURY

(228) MOVED AND RESOLVED BY THE ADMINISTRATOR

That -

 Council agrees to the sale of the property at 24a Third Street Ashbury, known as Lot 3 DP 1211967, to the adjoining owner of 24 Third Street, Ashbury subject to the terms as outlined in the report.

MINUTES OF THE

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

HELD IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS

ON 25 OCTOBER 2016

2. The Administrator and General Manager be delegated authority to sign all relevant documentation under the common seal of council, as required.

THE MEETING CLOSED AT 6.30 P.M

Minutes confirmed 22 NOVEMBER 2016

Administrator